Guide to the Silliman Family Papers

MS 450



compiled by Linda Wrigley and staff of Manuscripts and Archives

May 1973

Yale University Library P.O. Box 208240 New Haven, CT 06520-8240 (203) 432-1735 (203) 432-7441 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/

Last exported at 2:00 a.m. on Saturday, March 29th, 2025

Table of Contents

Collection Overview	
Requesting Instructions	
Administrative Information	
Immediate Source of Acquisition	4
Conditions Governing Access	4
Conditions Governing Use	4
Preferred Citation	
Existence and Location of Copies	4
Biographical / Historical	
Scope and Contents	
Arrangement	
Collection Contents	
Series I: Family Correspondence, 1717-(1775-1889)-1911	12
Series II: General Correspondence, 1796-1885	
Series III: Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences and Manuscripts, 1795-1888	
Series IV: Yale Lectures, Students' Notebooks, Public Lectures, Addresses, 1806-1874	67
Series V: John Trumbull and the Trumbull Gallery at Yale, 1839-1896	72
Series VI: Special Files, 1756-1964	
Series VII: Oversize Materials, 1777-1864	
1979 July Addition, 1811-1889, undated	
1981 Addition, 1862-1865, 1977	
1982 Addition, 1838-1861, undated	
1984 Additions, 1805-1945	83
ACCESSION 1987-M-039: Additional Material, 1836-1878, undated	
ACCESSION 1988-M-072: Additional Material, 1841, undated	86
ACCESSION 1988-M-083: Additional Material, 1857-1874	87
ACCESSION 1991-M-078: Additional Material, 1878 September 9	88
ACCESSION 1995-M-109: Additional Material, 1837	89
ACCESSION 1995-M-211: Additional Material, 1841 February 1	
ACCESSION 2001-M-023: Additional Material	
ACCESSION 2006-M-067: Additional Material, 1817-1847	92
ACCESSION 2008-M-082: Additional Material, 1846-1876	
ACCESSION 2014-M-003: Additional Material, 1836-1886	
Accession 2015-M-025: Additional Material, 1836-1889	95
Accession 2016-M-0056: Additional Material, 1805	96
Accession 2020-M-0004: Additional Material, 1864	97
Accession 2024-M-0021: Additional material, 1855	
Selected Search Terms	99

Collection Overview

REPOSITORY: Manuscripts and Archives Yale University Library P.O. Box 208240 New Haven, CT 06520-8240 (203) 432-1735 (203) 432-7441 beinecke.library@yale.edu http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/

CALL NUMBER: MS 450

CREATOR: Silliman family

TITLE: Silliman family papers

DATES: 1717-1977

BULK DATES: 1717-1911

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: 36.46 linear feet (91 boxes)

LANGUAGE: English

SUMMARY: The papers consist of correspondence, lectures, notebooks, diaries, journals, and other material documenting the personal lives and professional careers of the Silliman family, including Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) and Benjamin Silliman, Jr. (1816-1885). Personal material details family life, relationships, social activities, and cultural pursuits. Professional material details the academic and literary interests of the Sillimans, particularly in chemistry, physics, and geology. The evolution and development of science, the beginnings of scientific instruction at Yale, and many related topics are documented. Material relating to John Trumbull and the Trumbull Art Gallery at Yale is also included. Family letters and journals offer observations on local and national events, as exemplified by Maggie Lindsley's journal and letters with Benjamin Silliman relating to the Civil War.

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://</u><u>hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ms.0450</u>

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use in the Manuscripts and Archives reading room, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/mssa.ms.0450.

To order reproductions from this collection, please go to <u>http://www.library.yale.edu/mssa/</u> <u>ifr_copy_order.html</u>. The information you will need to submit an order includes: the collection call number, collection title, series or accession number, box number, and folder number or name.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

Gift of the Silliman family; Thomas P. Blagden, 1982; Leonard G. Wilson, 1984; Mrs. Donald L. Rasmussen, 1984-1988; John Stadler and Naomi Mahlub, 1988; Northwestern University Library, 1991; Walter D. Wagoner, 1995; Wayne Smith, 1995; Cornelia Gaines Olsen, 2000, and by purchase and transfer. Gift of Barbara Narendra, 2005; Mrs. Harold Duessel, 2008. Gift of Louis I. Kuslan, 2013-2014. Gift of Richard Van Wagenen, 2016. Gift of Daniel Carroll Joynes, 2019. Gift of Jean and Jock McClellan, 2024.

Conditions Governing Access

Series II, General Correspondence, boxes 18-23 (NOTE the exclusion of box 24), and Series III, Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences, and Manuscripts, Boxes 25-31 are available on microfilm. Patrons must use FILM HM 140 instead of originals.

The materials are open for research.

Conditions Governing Use

Copyright status for collection materials is unknown, though much of the material in this collection is likely in the public domain. Transmission or reproduction of materials protected by U.S. Copyright Law (Title 17, U.S.C.) beyond that allowed by fair use requires the written permission of the copyright owners. Works not in the public domain cannot be commercially exploited without permission of the copyright owners. Responsibility for any use rests exclusively with the user.

Preferred Citation

Silliman Family Papers (MS 450). Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library.

Existence and Location of Copies

Series II. General Correspondence, Boxes 18-23 (NOTE box 24 is not on the microfilm), and Series III. Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences, and Manuscripts, Boxes 25-31, also available on microfilm (12,171 frames on 14 reels, 35mm.) from Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library, at cost. Order no. HM140.

Journals of Anthony Glass and John Maley also available on microfilm (220 frames on 1 reel, 35mm.) from Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library, at cost. Order no. HM66.

Diary of Joseph Fish also available on microfilm (30 frames on 1 reel, 35mm.) from Manuscripts and Archives, Yale University Library, at cost. Order no. HM78.

Biographical / Historical

Four generations of Sillimans, surrounding the central figure of Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864), are represented in the Silliman Family Papers. According to a number of sources, Silliman's ancestors were Italian Protestants named Sillimandi, who moved to Geneva some time during the Reformation and later to Holland. Elizabeth Schenck in *History of Fairfield, Fairfield County, Connecticut* notes that the first member of the family in America, Daniel Sillivant, settled in Fairfield around 1658. By 1690 the family name was established as Silliman.

The relationships of various members of the Silliman family are sketched in outline form below. For additional information, consult the genealogical charts immediately following the outline (in the repository) and the family Bible in the Yale Archives.

Ebenezer Silliman (1707-1775)

Graduated from Yale College in 1727. Judge of the superior court of New Haven Colony and member of the Governor's Council. Married Abigail Selleck.

Gold Selleck Silliman (1732-1790)

Son of Ebenezer and Abigail (Selleck) Silliman. Graduated from Yale College in 1752. Married Martha Davenport. They had one surviving son, William Silliman. In 1775 Gold Selleck married Mary (Fish) Noyes. During the Revolution, Silliman held the rank of general and was charged with the defense of southwestern Connecticut.

Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson (1736-1818)

Daughter of Joseph Fish, Harvard graduate and for fifty years pastor of a church in North Stonington, Connecticut and of Rebecca (Peabody) Fish who was a descendant of Priscilla and John Alden. Mary had one sister, Rebecca, wife of Benjamin Douglas, who died in 1766. In 1758 Mary married John Noyes, pastor of the First Church in New Haven. They had five children:

Rebecca (1759-1760)

Joseph (b. 1761)

John (b. 1762)

James (b. 1764)

Mary (1766-1770)

John Noyes died in 1767 and in 1775 Mary married Gold Selleck Silliman. They had two children:

Gold Selleck Silliman

Married Hepsa Ely, daughter of David Ely of Newport, Rhode Island. Moved to Brooklyn in 1815. Their thirteen children include Benjamin Douglas Silliman and Augustus Ely Silliman.

Benjamin Silliman

Mary was married a third time in 1804 to John Dickinson of Middletown.

In 1809 Benjamin Silliman married Harriet Trumbull, daughter of Governor Jonathan Trumbull.

Jonathan Trumbull (1710-1785)

Governor of Connecticut 1769 to 1784. Married Faith Robinson, daughter of John Robinson of Duxbury, Massachusetts in 1735. They had six children, including:

Jonathan Trumbull (1740-1809)

John Trumbull (1756-1843), artist

Jonathan Trumbull (1740-1809)

Governor of Connecticut 1797 to 1809. Married Eunice Backus in 1767. They had five children, including:

Faith (Trumbull) Wadsworth

Maria (Trumbull) Hudson

Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman

Benjamin and Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman had nine children, five of whom reached adulthood, including Benjamin Silliman, Jr. After the death of his first wife, Silliman was married in 1851 to Sarah Isabella (McClellan) Webb, a descendant of the first Governor Trumbull. In 1840 Benjamin Silliman, Jr. married Susan Huldah Forbes, daughter of William J. Forbes and Charlotte Antoinette (Root) Forbes L'Aignoux.

LIST OF IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE LIVES OF BENJAMIN SILLIMAN AND BENJAMIN SILLIMAN, JR.

The notes below outline some significant dates in the lives of Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Silliman, Jr. For additional biographical information on both Sillimans, consult the *Dictionary of American Biography* and the biographical sketches and memoirs in the Silliman Family Papers. George P. Fisher's *Life of Benjamin Silliman* is a good source of biographical data on the elder Silliman and *Scientists in Conflict: The Beginnings of the Oil Industry in California* by Gerald White contains valuable information on the younger Silliman's career as a mining consultant. For a comprehensive bibliography of the works of Benjamin Silliman, Jr., Consult Arthur Williams Wright's "Biographical Memoir of Benjamin Silliman 1816-1885," published in 1911 by the National Academy of Sciences. A copy of this pamphlet is filed with the biographical sketches and memoirs.

Benjamin Silliman

$_{\odot}$ born in North Stratford (now Trumbull), Connecticut on August 8
o entered Yale College
$_{\odot}$ graduated from Yale; taught in a private school in Wethersfield
$_{\odot}$ returned to New Haven to study law with Simeon Baldwin and Charles Chauncey
$_{\odot}$ appointed a tutor in Yale College
 admitted to the bar. Appointed professor of chemistry and natural history in Yale College. Spent the next two winters (1802-1804) studying chemistry with James Woodhouse and Robert Hare in Philadelphia and with John Maclean in Princeton. Elected to membership in the American Philosophical Society.
$_{\odot}$ gave first chemistry lectures at Yale
$_{\odot}$ traveled to Europe to study chemistry, mineralogy and geology in London and Edinburgh and to buy books and scientific equipment for Yale
$_{\odot}$ helped formulate plans for a medical school at Yale
$_{\odot}$ observed and wrote an account of the famous "Weston (Connecticut) Meteor." Became acquainted with Col. George Gibbs who first loaned and later sold his mineral cabinet to Yale
$_{\odot}$ gave first series of lectures on chemistry to the public in the Yale College Laboratory
o married Harriet Trumbull
 published Journal of Travels in England, Holland and Scotland. Edited William Henry's The Elements of Experimental Chemistry
$_{\odot}$ introduced full course of illustrated lectures on mineralogy and geology at Yale
$_{\odot}$ published first issue of The American Journal of Science and Artsin July
$_{\odot}$ traveled to Quebec with brother-in-law Daniel Wadsworth
$_{\odot}$ published A Short Tour between Hartford and Quebec in the Autumn of 1819

Benjamin Silliman	
1824	$_{\odot}$ traveled to Washington, D. C. with Daniel Wadsworth
1830	 published <i>Elements of Chemistry</i>
1830	$_{\odot}$ appointed a director of the General Hospital Society of Connecticut, the first state-chartered hospital in Connecticut
1831-1833	$_{\odot}$ gave first public lectures in chemistry outside Yale at the Franklin Institute, New Haven
1832	$_{\odot}$ instrumental in the founding of the Trumbull Gallery at Yale
1832-1833	$_{\odot}$ conducted an investigation of the culture and manufacture of sugar sponsored by the Federal government
1833	o edited Robert Bakewell's An Introduction to Geology
1834	$_{\odot}$ gave a series of public lectures on geology in Hartford, the first public lectures outside New Haven
1835	$_{\odot}$ gave a series of geology lectures in Boston
1836	$_{\odot}$ made a professional tour of gold mines in Virginia, accompanied by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.
1839-1840	$_{\odot}$ delivered the inaugural lectures of the Lowell Institute, Boston, on geology
1840	$_{\odot}$ elected president of the newly-formed Association of American Geologists, parent organization for the American Association for the Advancement of Science
1840-1843	$_{\odot}$ continued the Lowell Institute series with lectures on chemistry
1840s	$_{\odot}$ gave public lectures in Pittsburgh, Baltimore, Charleston, New Orleans and throughout the South
1846	o retired as an active editor of <i>Journal of Science</i>
1851	$_{\odot}$ traveled to Europe accompanied by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. Married Sarah Isabella (McClellan) Webb
1852	$_{\odot}$ gave a course in geology at the Smithsonian Institution
1853	$_{\odot}$ gave final lecture in Yale College
1863	$_{\odot}$ one of fifty original members elected to the National Academy of Sciences
1863	$_{\odot}$ retired after fifteen years as president of the American Mutual Life Insurance Company
1864	$_{\odot}$ died in New Haven, November 24
Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	
1816	$_{\odot}$ born in New Haven, December 4

1836 $_{\odot}$ accompanied his father on a professional tour of gold mines in Virginia

Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	
1837	$_{\odot}$ graduated from Yale; became an assistant to his father
1838	$_{\odot}$ became associate editor of The American Journal of Science and Arts
1840	$_{\odot}$ married Susan Huldah Forbes
1842	$_{\odot}$ began teaching general and analytical chemistry and mineralogy to private students
1845-1846	$_{\odot}$ gave a series of lectures on agricultural chemistry in New Orleans
1845-1849	$_{\odot}$ member, Common Council of New Haven
1846	 became co-editor, with James Dwight Dana, of Journal of Science. Appointed professor of practical chemistry in the newly-created Department of Philosophy and the Arts in Yale College. John Pitkin Norton appointed professor of agricultural chemistry- beginnings of the Yale Scientific School
1847	o published First Principles of Chemistry
1849-1854	$_{\odot}$ professor of medical chemistry and toxicology at University of Louisville
1851	$_{\odot}$ traveled to Europe with his father; studied geology and met many European scientists
1853	 appointed professor of general and applied chemistry at Yale. Supervised chemical, mineralogical and geological exhibits at the Crystal Palace in New York. Edited World of Science, Art and Industry with Charles R. Goodrich
1854	 assumed teaching duties in Yale Scientific School and in Yale Medical School. Edited The Progress of Science and Mechanism with Charles R. Goodrich
1855	 published "Report on the Rock Oil, or Petroleum, from Venango County, Pennsylvania"
1858	$_{\odot}$ second trip to Europe
1859	o published First Principles of Physics or Natural Philosophy
1863	$_{\odot}$ one of fifty original members elected to the National Academy of Sciences
1865-1885	$_{\odot}$ consulting chemist and geologist for mining interests
1869	$_{\odot}$ appointed state chemist of Connecticut
1870	$_{\odot}$ resigned duties in Sheffield Scientific School
1874	$_{\odot}$ delivered address at the centennial celebration of American chemistry
1885	$_{\odot}$ died in New Haven, January 14

Scope and Contents

Note: Throughout the Silliman Family Papers, Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) is always referred to as Benjamin Silliman or BS and Benjamin Silliman (1816-1885) is always referred to as Benjamin Silliman, Jr. or BS, JR.

The Silliman Family Papers are divided into six series:

FAMILY CORRESPONDENCE GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE DIARIES, JOURNALS, REMINISCENCES AND MANUSCRIPTS YALE LECTURES, STUDENTS' NOTEBOOKS, PUBLIC LECTURES AND ADDRESSES JOHN TRUMBULL AND THE TRUMBULL GALLERY AT YALE SPECIAL FILES

The material in these papers chronicles the development of the Silliman family from the late eighteenth century through the nineteenth century and illustrates the relationships between the Sillimans and various other prominent New England families, including the Danas, the Trumbulls and the Gilmans. The Silliman Family Papers also contain valuable information on the development of American science in the nineteenth century in relation to the careers of Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Silliman, Jr.

The major portion of FAMILY CORRESPONDENCE falls within the period from 1775 to 1889, although there is correspondence dated as early as 1717 and as late as 1911. The series is divided into three sections:

General Benjamin Silliman Benjamin Silliman, Jr.

"General" correspondence includes all letters to or from family members except those letters either to or from the two Benjamin Sillimans. Consult APPENDIX A for a detailed list of the Silliman-Fish correspondence. The most important groups of correspondents in "General" correspondence are:

Joseph Fish, Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson and Gold Selleck Silliman (ca. 1775 - ca. 1790) Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman, Faith (Trumbull) Wadsworth, Maria (Trumbull) Hudson, Eunice (Backus) Trumbull and Jonathan Trumbull (ca. 1800 - ca. 1825)

Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman, Faith (Trumbull) and Daniel Wadsworth and the Silliman children (ca. 1830 - ca. 1850)

Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman and the Silliman children (ca. 1855 - 1878)

Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright and brother, sisters, friends, and relatives (ca. 1865 - 1890)

Correspondents of note in the period 1865-1890 include George Jarvis Brush, Dorothea Lynde Dix, Clarence King and Lydia Howard Huntley Sigourney. Of particular interest are the letters from Ellen Forbes written from the diamond fields of South Africa between 1872 and 1875. Approximately fifty letters written by William Whitman Bailey to Susan Wright between 1861 and 1876 have been placed in the William Whitman Bailey Papers in the Natural Science Manuscripts Group. Correspondence between Susan Wright and her husband is also in the Arthur Williams Wright Papers. For a complete list of Susan Wright's correspondents, consult APPENDIX B. (See also the 1979 Addition)

The correspondence in "Benjamin Silliman" dates from 1793 to 1864. Many of the letters written by Silliman to family members chronicle his travels and lecture tours. (See also the 1982 Addition) The correspondence in "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." dates from 1828 to 1884. Letters written by Silliman, Jr. record his travels abroad and throughout the American West.

GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE contains letters pertaining to the scientific and business affairs of Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Silliman, Jr. and to their duties in connection with Yale College and with *The American Journal of Science and Arts*. The series is divided into the following sections:

Pre-1818: This section of correspondence covers the early part of Benjamin Silliman's career, first as a student and later as a teacher of chemistry, geology, mineralogy, and medicine. 1818-1841: The year 1818 marks the establishment of the Journal of Science, an important milestone in Silliman's career. It is during this period that Silliman began giving public lectures on science. 1842-1864: In 1842 Benjamin Silliman, Jr. began teaching private science classes in New Haven. These classes led to the founding of the Yale Scientific School (later Sheffield Scientific School). The period ends with the death of Benjamin Silliman.

1865-1885: During this period, Benjamin Silliman, Jr. engaged in an active career as a mining and chemical consultant.

The General Correspondence series includes letters exchanged with European and American scientists, educators, inventors, politicians, miners, writers and artists. Correspondents of note include: Louis Agassiz,

Frederick Augustus Porter Barnard, Jöns Jakob Berzelius, Alexandre Brongniart, George Jarvis Brush, John Caldwell Calhoun, Josiah Parsons Cooke, James Fenimore Cooper, James Dwight Dana, Charles Darwin, Jeremiah Day, Dorothea Lynde Dix, Timothy Dwight, Josiah Willard Gibbs, Charles Goodyear, Robert Hare, Washington Irving, Andrew Jackson, Sir Charles Lyell, William Maclure, Gideon Algernon Mantell, Josiah Meigs, Samuel Finley Breese Morse, Baron Nils Adolf Erik Nordenskiold, Edwards Pierrepont, Gerrit Smith, Jared Sparks, Moses Stuart, Alphonso Taft, John Taylor, John Torrey, Josiah Dwight Whitney.

DIARIES, JOURNALS, REMINISCENCES AND MANUSCRIPTS is divided into three sections:

Benjamin Silliman Benjamin Silliman, Jr. Others

Most of the material in this series was written by Benjamin Silliman and is filed in the first section. Although there are a few diaries dating from 1795, Silliman's most comprehensive diaries are the seventeen volumes that he designated "Personal Notices," begun in 1840 and continued until 1864. Silliman's journals record his two trips to Europe in 1805-1806 and in 1851. The earlier journals are accompanied by some pertinent account books and several volumes of notes taken by Silliman while he was a student in London and Edinburgh. His nine volumes of reminiscences, begun in 1857 and completed in 1862, chronicle the origin and growth of the study of science in Yale College and Silliman's scientific career from 1792 to 1862. The manuscripts include a few poems, some scientific papers and notebooks and a 1,250-page draft of Observations and Remarks made during a Tour in Europe in the Spring and Summer of 1851. "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." contains nothing but a few poems. (Eleven scientific papers by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. were added to the papers in 1976.) The "Others" section contains poems, diaries and reminiscences written by various members of the Silliman family, notably, the reminiscences of Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson, as well as manuscript material and journals written by non-family members. The latter category includes an essay on the manufacture of porcelain by Alexandre Brongniart, a poem by Gideon Algernon Mantell titled, "To a Group of Organic Remains" and two journals concerning the search for "Texas meteoric iron" kept by Captain Anthony Glass in 1808-1809 and by John Maley in 1811-1813.

YALE LECTURES, STUDENTS' NOTEBOOKS, PUBLIC LECTURES AND ADDRESSES is divided into two sections:

Benjamin Silliman Benjamin Silliman, Jr.

As in the preceding series, most of the material in this series was produced by Benjamin Silliman. The texts of a number of Silliman's Yale lectures on mineralogy, geology, and chemistry dating from 1813 to 1849 are filed in this series which also includes notebooks written by students in Silliman's classes (mostly chemistry) from 1806 to 1829. There are also texts of some of Silliman's public lectures, including his lectures on chemistry at the Lowell Institute, 1841-1843 and the texts of six addresses. "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." contains three items of which his address at the centennial celebration of American chemistry in 1874, titled "American Contributions to Chemistry," is the most important. (Six addresses by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. were added to the papers in 1976.)

The most significant material in the JOHN TRUMBULL AND THE TRUMBULL GALLERY AT YALE series is the volume of reminiscences written by Benjamin Silliman in 1857 about Trumbull and the founding of the Trumbull Gallery. There is some additional material, including correspondence relating to the disposition of various works by the artist.

The SPECIAL FILES contain material relating to various members of the Silliman family in the form of biographical sketches, genealogical materials, legal and financial material, memorabilia, photographs and papers relating to scientific and Yale College business dating from 1756 to 1964; there is also a card file index to correspondence in the Papers.

For additional material concerning the Silliman family, consult the following catalogs and registers in Yale University Library, Manuscripts and Archives:

Manuscripts Catalog

Yale publications catalog

Register of the Kingsley Memorial Collection

Register of the John Trumbull Papers

Register of the Wadsworth Family Collection

Register of the Amos Beebe Eaton Papers in the Natural Science Manuscripts Group

The University of Arizona Library, the Historical Society of Pennsylvania and the Boston Public Library also possess Silliman family papers. There is Benjamin Silliman, Sr. - Gideon A. Mantell correspondence in the Alexander Turnbull Library, Wellington, New Zealand.

Please consult the index for an inventory for the Microfilm of series II and III

Arrangement

Arranged in six series and various additions: I. Family Correspondence. II. General Correspondence. III. Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences and Manuscripts. IV. Yale Lectures, Students' Notebooks, Public Lectures and Addresses. V. John Trumbull and the Trumbull Gallery. VI. Special Files. VII. Oversize Materials, 1777-1864. Additional Materials.

Collection Contents Series I: Family Correspondence, 1717-(1775-1889)-1911

8 linear feet (21 boxes)

Correspondence in each of the three sections is arranged chronologically. Letters written by Benjamin Silliman *to* Benjamin Silliman, Jr. are filed in "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." Letters written by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. *to*Benjamin Silliman are filed in "Benjamin Silliman."

The following is a key to the abbreviations used in this series:

ATSB Alice Trumbull (Silliman) Belknap WSC Walter Silliman Church MFNSD Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson FWSH Faith Wadsworth (Silliman) Hubbard HTH Harriet Trumbull Hubbard HWH Henrietta Whitney Hubbard MSK Mabel McClellan (Silliman) Kelly ERSR Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers BS Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) BS, JR. Benjamin Silliman (1816-1885) BS III Benjamin Silliman (1849-1901) FWS Frances Elizabeth (Wild) Silliman SHFS Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman SFSW Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright

Some material received as part of the 1979 Jul Addition of the Silliman Family Papers was integrated into the original collection and noted accordingly.

	General	
b. 1, f. 1-6	1717, 1720, 1736, 1743, 1746, 1750-1751, 1753-1763, 1765-1768, 1770-1771, 1773-1775 Material is inaccessible as of March 2025 pending preservation review.	1717, 1720, 1736, 1743, 1746, 1750-1751, 1753-1763, 1765-1768, 1770-1771, 1773-1775
b. 1, f. 7	Typescripts of some letters from 1775 Nov 9 to 1781 Mar 6	
b. 1, f. 8-11	1776 January-October	1776 January- October
b. 2, f. 12-14	1776 November-1777 December A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1776 November-1777 December
b. 2, f. 15	1778 January–Mar, June–December	1778 January– Mar, June– December
b. 2, f. 16-17	1779 January-Mar, May-December	1779 January- Mar, May- December

General (continued)

b. 2, f. 18-20	1780-1782	1780-1782
b. 2, f. 21	1784 English	1784
b. 2, f. 22-24	1786-1788	1786-1788
b. 2, f. 25	1790 English	1790
b. 2, f. 26-32	1795-1801	1795-1801
b. 3, f. 33-50	1802-1819	1802-1819
b. 4, f. 51-71	1820-1840	1820-1840
b. 5, f. 72-97	1841-1866	1841-1866
b. 5, f. 88	ALS to Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman from Mollie Church	[1857?] September 28
b. 5, f. 89	ALS to Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman from H. L. Gilman	1858 March 18
b. 6, f. 103	ALS to Dorothea Dix from Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1872 August 3
b. 6, f. 105	ALS to Dorothea Dix from S.J.S. [Sarah J. S?]	1874 December 8
b. 6, f. 98-105	1867-1874	
b. 7A, f. 106A-D	1875 English	1875
b. 7B, f. 107A-B	1876 English	1876
b. 7B, f. 108-114	1877-1879	1877-1879
b. 8, f. 115-125	1880–1886 January–April	1880–1886 January–April
b. 8, f. 123	ALS to Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright and Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers from Charlotte Antoinette (Root) Forbes L'Aignoux	1884 October
b. 8, f. 124	ALS to Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers from Mabel (Silliman) Kelly	1885 June 18
b. 8, f. 124	ALS to Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers from Alice Trumbull (Silliman) Belknap	1885 June 10
b. 8, f. 124	ALS to Alice Trumbull (Silliman) Belknap from Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers	1885 April 18
b. 9, f. 126-132	1886 May - 1889 June	1886 May - 1889 June
b. 10, f. 133-135	1889 July - 1911	1889 July - 1911
b. 10, f. 136	Sillimon Susan Lludah (Faubaa) nd	
	Silliman, Susan Huldah (Forbes), n.d.	
b. 10, f. 137	A - D	undated

General (continued)

b. 10, f. 138	E-L	undated
b. 10, f. 139	M - Z	undated
b. 10, f. 139	ALS to [Mabel (Silliman) Kelly?] from [Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright?]	? September 8
b. 10, f. 139	ALS to Professor [?] from Benjamin Douglas Silliman	? June 19
b. 10, f. 139	Portion of ALS to [?] from Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers	undated
b. 10, f. 139	ALS to Bessie Forbes from Jeannie Sheldon	undated
b. 10, f. 140	Unidentified note, "My dear Mrs. Silliman"	undated
b. 10, f. 140	Unidentified	undated
Be	njamin Silliman	
b. 11, f. 141-150	1793-1808	1793-1808
b. 12, f. 151-160	1809-1817	1809-1817
b. 13, f. 161-176	1818-1833	1818-1833
b. 14, f. 177-186	1834-1843	1834-1843
b. 15 , f. 187-207	1844-1864, undated	1844-1864, undated
b. 15 , f. 208	Letters of condolence on the occasion of the death of Benjamin Silliman, 1864	
Be	njamin Silliman, Jr.	
b. 16A, f. 209	1826, 1828	1826, 1828
b. 16A, f. 210A-G	1831-1839	1831-1839
b. 16A, f. 211A-B	1840 English	1840
b. 16A, f. 212	1841 English	1841
b. 16B, f. 213	1842 English	1842
b. 16B, f. 214A-B	1843 English	1843
b. 16B, f. 215	1844 English	1844
b. 16B, f. 216A-B	1845 English	1845
b. 16B, f. 217-231	1846-1864	1846-1864
b. 16C, f. 232-236	1865-1869	1865-1869

Benjamin Silliman, Jr. (continued)

b. 17A, f. 237	1870 English	1870
b. 17A, f. 238A-B	1871 English	1871
b. 17A, f. 239A-B	1872 English	1872
b. 17A, f. 240A-B	1873 English	1873
b. 17A, f. 241A-D	1874 English	1874
b. 17A, f. 242A-C	1875 English	1875
b. 17B, f. 243A-D	1876 English	1876
b. 17B , f. 244A-B	1877 English	1877
b. 17B, f. 245-251	1878-1884	1878-1884
b. 17B , f. 249	ALS to Susie Silliman Wright from Benjamin Silliman Jr.	1882 August 24
b. 17B, f. 251	ALS to Benjamin Silliman Jr. from Mabel (Silliman) Kelly	1884 December 7
b. 17B, f. 252	Correspondence with Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman, n.d.	
b. 17B , f. 253	undated	

Series II: General Correspondence, 1796-1885

3 linear feet (7 boxes)

This series combines the correspondence of Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Silliman, Jr. Correspondence is arranged alphabetically in each of the four sections. Letters written by either of the Sillimans are filed under the names of the people to whom the letters are addressed. It is necessary to consult the folder title listings in each of the four sections for the correspondence of a particular individual. Correspondence concerning The American Journal of Science and Arts is usually filed in the general A to Z folders. For an alphabetical list of Journal of Science correspondents, consult APPENDIX C.

Some material received as part of the 1979 Jul Addition of the Silliman Family Papers was integrated into the original collection and noted accordingly.

For additional material concerning The American Journal of Science and Arts, see also:

DIARIES, JOURNALS, REMINISCENCES AND MANUSCRIPTS, Benjamin Silliman: Notes on Dr. George Pearson's lectures...1805. (Notebook contains subscription list, 1818-1822.)

YALE LECTURES, STUDENTS' NOTEBOOKS, PUBLIC LECTURES AND ADDRESSES, Benjamin Silliman: Yale Lectures, Notes on order of chemistry lectures, 1839-1840. (Includes memoranda of transactions in relation to journal.)

SPECIAL FILES; Financial Material: Bills and receipts, Yale College Laboratory and The American Journal of Science and Arts

APPENDIX C

Researchers must use the microfilm version of Series II, boxes 18-23, material (NOTE: Box 24 is not on the microfilm), MICROFILM HM 140. Material from this series comprises reels 9-14, also numbered as Part II, reels 1-6. The correspondence is as follows:

- Reel 9 = Part II, Reel 1
- Reel 10 = Part II Reel 2
- Reel 11 = Part II, Reel 3
- Reel 12 = Part II, Reel 4
- Reel 13 = Part II, Reel 5
- Reel 14 = Part II, Reel 6

	<u>Pre-1818</u>	
	Researchers must use the microfilm version of Series II, boxes 18-23, material, MICROFILM HM 140.	
b. 18, f. 1reel 9U	Bartlett, [Shubael]?	1810
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 1reel 9U	Beck, Theodoric Romeyn	1814
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 1reel 9U	Bradley, William	1810
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

b. 18, f. 1reel 9U	Bronson, Isaac This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1807
b. 18, f. 1reel 9U	Bruce, Archibald This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Chauncey, Elihu This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1801, 1808
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Cleaveland, Parker This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1811, 1813-1817
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Clerc, Laurent This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1816
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Codman, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Cogswell, Mason Fitch This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1813
b. 18, f. 2reel 9U	Cutter, N. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1816
b. 18, f. 3reel 9U	Darling, Noyes This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1809-1810
b. 18, f. 3reel 9U	Davis, Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1806
b. 18, f. 4reel 9U	Day, Jeremiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1802-1806, 1810
b. 18, f. 5reel 9U	Day, Thomas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1806
b. 18, f. 5reel 9U	Denison, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1796-1809

b. 18, f. 5reel 9U	Dewey, Chester This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1814-1815
b. 18, f. 5reel 9U	Dickson, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1811
b. 18, f. 5reel 9U	Dwight, Timothy This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805
b. 18, f. 6reel 9U	Eastburn (James) and Company This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1811
b. 18, f. 6reel 9U	Elliott, J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 6reel 9U	Gallaudet, Thomas Hopkins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1814, 1817
b. 18, f. 6reel 9U	Gorham, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1806, 1808-1811, 1816-1817
b. 18, f. 6reel 9U	Griscom, J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1811
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hall, Frederick This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1807, 1810-1811, 1813
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hare, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1816
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hayden, Horace H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1813
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hillhouse, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1803, 1809
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hoadley, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805

b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hoope, Mary This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1814
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hoope, Udny H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1813
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hopkins, Samuel H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Hosack, David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1813
b. 18, f. 7reel 9U	Huntington, Jedediah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1804
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	l'on, Jacob Bond This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Judson, David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Kingsley, James Luce This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1802-1803, 1805
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Knight, Jonathan This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1811
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Lea, Isaac This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1817
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Linnaean Society of New England This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1815
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Literary and Philosophical Society of South Carolina This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1815
b. 18, f. 8reel 9U	Lowell, A. C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1809

b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Maclure, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1817
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Marsh, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1804
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Miller, Asher This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1807
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Mitchell, Samuel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1817
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Mitchell, S. M. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1801
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Morse, Samuel Finley Breese (typed copy only) This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1810
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	North, W. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1812
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Ogilvy, Daniel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1806
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Peck, William D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 9reel 9U	Porter, Noah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1804
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Riley, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1810
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Ryland, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1806
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Seybert, Adam This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808

b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Shaler, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Smith, Edward Darrell This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1814-1817
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Smith, Nathan This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1814
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Spalding, Lyman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808, 1811, 1813
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Staples, Seth Perkins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1798
b. 18, f. 10reel 9U	Stuart, Moses This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1803-1804, 1811
b. 18, f. 11reel 9U	Trumbull, Jonathan (1740-1808) This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805
b. 18, f. 12reel 9U	Twining, Stephen This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1796, 1798-1799, 1802-1807
b. 18, f. 13reel 9U	Turney, Samuel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1816
b. 18, f. 13reel 9U	Warren, John Collins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1809
b. 18, f. 13reel 9U	Woodbridge, William Channing This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1812-1814
b. 18, f. 13reel 9U	Woodhouse, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1808
b. 18, f. 14reel 9U	number unassigned This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

	<u>1818-1841</u>	
	Researchers must use the microfilm version of Series II, boxes 18-23, material, MICROFILM HM 140.	
b. 18, f. 15reel 9U	A This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1823, 1829, 1831– 1835 1840–1841
	originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Agassiz, Louis	1837
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Alexander, John H.	1841
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Alexander, Moses Winslow	1834
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Allerton, Milton Barlow	1831
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Anderson, Henry J.	1826
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 16reel 9U	Ayers, J. P.	1831-1832
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 17reel 9U	В	1818, 1824-1825,
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1828-1835, 1838-1840
b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	Bache, Alexander Dallas	1832
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	Bache, Franklin	1829-1830
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	Banks, D. C.	1818
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	Barnard, Frederick Augustus Porter	1841
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBarton, D. W. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1839b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBetes, Joshua This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1841b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1841b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Lewis C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1841b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Theodoric Romeyn This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1820, 1839b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBigelow, Jacob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1820, 1839b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBigelow, Jacob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBoonycastle, Sir Richard Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrexe, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826, 1831, 1833, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 1832, 1834, 1831, 18	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	Barnes, D. H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826, 1828
InisThis material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.If an	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1839
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1841b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Lewis C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1820, 1839b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Theodoric Romeyn 	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1826
Initial has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1820, 1839b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBeck, Theodoric Romeyn This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1818, 1828b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBigelow, Jacob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1818, 1828b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBonnycastle, Sir Richard Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1830-1831, 1833b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBowen, George F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. <td< td=""><td>b. 18, f. 18reel 9U</td><td>This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the</td><td>1841</td></td<>	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1841
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.I818, 1828b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBigelow, Jacob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1830-1831, 1833b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBonnycastle, Sir Richard Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBowen, George F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: box 34B, folder 591826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1841
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1830-1831, 1833b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBonnycastle, Sir Richard Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBowen, George F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reelBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1820, 1839
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBowen, George F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1824, 1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reelBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the OU1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1818, 1828
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrace, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1822b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reelBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the 10U1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1830-1831, 1833
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 18reel 9UBrewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1826b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 9UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: box 34B, folder 591826b. 18, f. 19reel 10UBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1824, 1826
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.1819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 10UBrongniart, Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the See also: box 34B, folder 591819-1823, 1831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 10UBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1822
This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: box 34B, folder 591831-1832, 1834, 1836-1837b. 18, f. 19reel 10UBull, Marcus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the1826	b. 18, f. 18reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1826
10U This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	b. 18, f. 19reel 9U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1831-1832, 1834,
		See also: <u>box 34B, folder 59</u>	

b. 19, f. 20reel 10U	C This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1822, 1824-1825, 1829-1835, 1837, 1840
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Calhoun, John Caldwell This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Carpenter, George W. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1832
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Channing, Edward Tyrrel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Chauncey, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826, 1828, 1833
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Chilton, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830
b. 19, f. 21reel 10U	Chilton, James R. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1836, 1841
b. 19, f. 22reel 10U	Cleaveland, Parker This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818–1821, 1823– 1824, 1826– 1828, 1835, 1940, undated
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Cogswell, Joseph Green This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Colt, Roswell Lyman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819, 1829
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Comstock, J. L. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Conwell, Christopher Columbus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829, 1831
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Cooke, Erastus F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830

b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Cooper, James Fenimore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827, 1831
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Coxe, John Redman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1820
b. 19, f. 23reel 10U	Crane, J. B. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 19, f. 24reel 10U	D This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1822, 1825-1826, 1828-1835, 1841
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Daggett, David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Dana, James Dwight This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834, 1839-1840
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Darby, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835, 1837
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Darby, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Darwin, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Day, Jeremiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1828, 1836, 1841
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Delafield, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 20, folder 47</u>	1823, 1829, 1836
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	De la Rive, A. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 19, f. 25reel 10U	Delavan, Edward Cornelius This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834, 1841

b. 19, f. 26reel 10U	Dewey, Chester This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821-1828, 1831, 1834, 1839-1841
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	DeWitt, Richard Varick This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	DeWitt, Simeon This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832-1833
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dickerson, Mahlon This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1836
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dickson, Samuel Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822, 1824
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dix, Dorothea Lynde This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829, 1849, 1851
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	2 ALS to Dorothea Dix from Benjamin Silliman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849 November 21, 1851 January 26
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dix, John Adams This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1836
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dodge, David Low This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Douglass, David Bates This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818-1822, 1826-1827
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Drake, Daniel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1835, 1837
b. 19, f. 27reel 10U	Dwight, Theodore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819, 1828
b. 19, f. 28reel 10U	E This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1830, 1832-1833, 1835, 1839

b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Eaton, Amos This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830, 1832, 1834
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Ellet, William Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Elliott, J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Ellsworth, Henry L. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Ely, Isaac M. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Esten, James Christie Palmer This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1825, 1829-1830, 1838
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Evarts, Jeremiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Everett, Edward This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821
b. 19, f. 29reel 10U	Ewbank, Thomas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834
b. 19, f. 30reel 10U	F This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1835
b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Faust, Edwin D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1831
b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Featherstonhaugh, George W. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 20, folder 47</u>	1828-1829
b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Fisher, Alexander Metcalf This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822

b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Foot, Lyman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1824, 1831
b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Fowler, Orin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819
b. 19, f. 31reel 10U	Fowler, William Chauncey This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829, 1837
b. 19, f. 32reel 10U	G This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827, 1829-1835
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gale, Leonard Dunnell This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1830, 1832
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gardette, E. B. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gardiner, Daniel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Genet, E. C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gibbs, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gibbs, Laura W. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gilmor, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1824 1826, 1828, 1830
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Goodyear, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Gorham, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820

b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Graham, James D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838-1839
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Graham, Sylvester This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Grame, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 19, f. 33reel 10U	Green, Jacob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832-1834
b. 19, f. 34reel 10U	Grimke, Thomas Smith This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827-1830, 1833-1834
b. 19, f. 35reel 10U	Griscom, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1829, 1831, 1833-1834
b. 19, f. 35reel 10U	Griscom, John Hoskins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 19, f. 35reel 10U	Griswold, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826
b. 19, f. 35reel 10U	Gurley, Ralph Rand This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822, 1828-1829, 1840-1841
b. 19, f. 35reel 11U	Guthrie, Samuel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1831
b. 20, f. 36reel 11U	H This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818-1819, 1823, 1827-1835, 1840
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hale, Edward Everett This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hall, Basil This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820, undated

b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hall, Frederick This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hall, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839-1840
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Halsey, [J.]? Maclean This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hare, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 20, folder 47</u>	1819, 1823, 1826
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Harlan, Richard This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834-1836, 1841
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hassler, F. R. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832, 1837
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Hayden, Horace H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818-1821, 1831
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Henry, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1831, 1836-1837
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Henry, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829, 1831
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Herrick, Edward Claudius This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840-1841
b. 20, f. 37reel 11U	Heuland, Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822
b. 20, f. 38reel 11U	Hildreth, Samuel Prescott This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826-1827, 1833, 1835-1837, 1840
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hitchcock, Edward This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829, 1832

b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Holbrook, Josiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Holcomb, Amasa This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hopkins, Samuel Miles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hotchkiss, C. B. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1837
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Howe, Samuel Gridley This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1841
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hubbard, Oliver Payson This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hughes, Christopher This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Hull, Isaac This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834-1835
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Humbert, Jonas, Jr. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 20, f. 39reel 11U	Huntington, Jabez Williams This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830, 1841
b. 20, f. 40reel 11U	l - J This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1831, 1833, 1835-1837
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jackson, Andrew This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jackson, Charles Thomas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1828, 1833, 1835, 1837-1840

b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jay, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jocelyn, Nathaniel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Johnson, Walter Rogers This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1832
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Johnson, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jones, Alexander This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833, 1835
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jones, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Jones, Thomas P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 20, f. 41reel 11U	Joslin, Benjamin Franklin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 20, f. 42reel 11U	K This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1835, 1838
b. 20, f. 43reel 11U	King, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822, 1825, [1826]?
b. 20, f. 43reel 11U	Kingsley, James Luce This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1836, 1838, 1841
b. 20, f. 43reel 11U	Knight, J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 20, f. 44reel 11U	L This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1823-1824, 1828-1836, 1838-1839

b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	Lancaster, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1825, 1833
b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	Lea, Isaac This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1824, 1827-1828, 1830, 1833-1834, 1840
b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	Lea, Henry C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1841
b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	Lederer, Baron L. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	LeRow, George L. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1837
b. 20, f. 45reel 11U	Linsley, James H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838-1839
b. 20, f. 46reel 11U	Littell, Eliakim This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826, 1830-1838
b. 20, f. 46reel 11U	Littell (E.) and Brother This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1830
b. 20, f. 46reel 11U	Littell, John S. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833-1834
b. 20, f. 46reel 11U	Littell, Squier This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 20, f. 46reel 11U	Little, Weare Coffin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 20, f. 47reel 11U	Locke, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820, 1829-1830, 1834, 1837-1839
b. 20, f. 47reel 11U	Lovering, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840

b. 20, f. 47reel 11U	Lyceum of Natural History of New York This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 20, f. 48reel 11U	M This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821, 1824, 1829-1835, 1840-1841
b. 20, f. 49reel 11U	Maclure, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820-1838
b. 20, f. 50reel 11U	Mantell, Gideon Algernon This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>Family Correspondence: General</u>	1830-1836
b. 20, f. 51reel 11U	Mantell, Gideon Algernon This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831, 1837-1841
b. 20, f. 51reel 12U	Mantell, Walter This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	-1838
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Mather, William Williams This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830, 1833
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	May, Samuel Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Meade, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827, 1830, 1832
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Mease, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Meigs, Josiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1820
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Mitchell, J. K. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1831, 1838
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Moore, Jacob Bailey This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830

b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Morse, Samuel Finley Breese This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819, 1832
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Morton, Samuel George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1830, 1832-1833, 1840
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Muhlenberg, Henry Augustus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Murchison, Sir Roderick Impey This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839, 1841
b. 21, f. 52reel 12U	Mussey, Reuben Dimond This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1829-1830
b. 21, f. 53reel 12U	N - O This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819, 1829-1832, 1838-1839
b. 21, f. 54reel 12U	North, Elisha This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826
b. 21, f. 54reel 12U	Nott, Eliphalet This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 21, f. 54reel 12U	Olmsted, Denison This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1820, 1822
b. 21, f. 55reel 12U	P - Q This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1836, 1840
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Parkes, Samuel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1823
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Parsons, Usher This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830-1832
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Pascalis-Ouvriere, Felix This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1825-1827, 1829-1830, 1832

b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Paulding, James Kirke This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838-1839
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Pendleton (W. S. and J. B.) This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1831
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Pendleton, William S. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832-1833
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Pierpont, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Pomeroy, Samuel Wyllys This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Quincy, Eliza Susan This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832
b. 21, f. 56reel 12U	Quincy, Josiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827
b. 21, f. 57reel 12U	R This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1826, 1828-1836, 1838
b. 21, f. 58reel 12U	Redfield, William C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833, 1839-1840
b. 21, f. 58reel 12U	Renwick, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1824, 1829-1830, 1836-1839
b. 21, f. 58reel 12U	Richardson, G. F. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838-1839
b. 21, f. 58reel 12U	Rogers, Henry Darwin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1834, 1837
b. 21, f. 59reel 12U	S This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827, 1830-1837, 1839-1840

b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Schoolcraft, Henry Rowe This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1821
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Seybert, Adam This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1823
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sharpless, John T. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Shattuck, George C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Shaw, Moses This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Shepherd, Forrest This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sibley, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sigourney, Lydia Howard Huntley This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Smith, Edward Darrell This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818-1819
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sparks, Jared This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1826, 1829
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Stanley, Anthony Dumond This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Stebbins, Josiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1819, 1821, 1827-1828
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Strong, Theodore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831

b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sturgeon, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sullivan, John Langdon This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1831, 1834
b. 21, f. 60reel 12U	Sumner, W. H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 21, f. 61reel 12U	T This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1830, 1832-1836
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Tait, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Tappan, Benjamin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822, 1827-1831, 1838
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Tappan, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835, 1837
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Taylor, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Thayer, E. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831-1833, 1835
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Thayer, Sylvanus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Thomas, David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832-1833, 1835
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Thomson, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830, 1832
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Torrey, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820, 1822

b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	[Town, Ithiel]? English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Troost, Gerhard This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833, 1838
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Tully, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829
b. 21, f. 62reel 12U	Twining, Alexander C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1830, 1839-1840
b. 21, f. 63reel 12U	U - V This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1820, 1830, 1832, 1835
b. 21, f. 64reel 12U	Van der Kemp, Francis Adrian This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818
b. 21, f. 64reel 12U	Van Rensselaer, Jeremiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832
b. 21, f. 64reel 12U	Vanuxem, Lardner This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1827
b. 21, f. 64reel 12U	Vaughn, Benjamin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1822, 1833-1834
b. 21, f. 65reel 12U	ALS to Benjamin Silliman from Samuel Woodruff This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1832 June 11
b. 21, f. 65reel 12U	W This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1818, 1824, 1829-1836, 1840-1841
b. 21, f. 66reel 12U	Walsh, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1836
b. 21, f. 66reel 12U	Warren, John Collins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1838

b. 21, f. 66reel 12U	Watson, John Fanning	1834
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21 , f. 66 reel	Webber, Samuel	1830
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 67reel	Webster, John White	1819–1826, 1829,
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1831, 1834–1835, 1839, undated
b. 21 , f. 67 reel	White, Henry	1838
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 68reel	Williams, Samuel Wells	1840-1841
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 68reel	Williams, William Thorne	1826, 1830,
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1833-1834
b. 21, f. 68reel	Woodbridge, William Channing	1826, 1830
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21 , f. 68 reel	Woodward, Henry	1824
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 68reel	Woodward, Samuel B.	1824
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 68reel	Wyman, Jeffries	1839
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 69reel	X - Y - Z	1830-1832, 1841
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 21, f. 70 reel	Unidentified	1830, 1834
12U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

<u>1842-1864</u>

Researchers must use the microfilm version of Series II, boxes 18-23, material, MICROFILM HM 140.

b. 22, f. 71reel 13U	A This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1844, 1852-1855, 1860, 1862
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Abbott, Gorham D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850-1851
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Agassiz, Elizabeth Cabot Cary This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	[1851]?, undated
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Agassiz, Louis This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Alexander, John H This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844, 1847-1850, 1853, 1861
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Anderson, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Andrew, John Albion This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Apthrop, George Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Austin, Robert D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 22, f. 72reel 13U	Ayre, James Cook This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850
b. 22, f. 73reel 13U	B This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847, 1849, 1851-1855, 1857-1860, 1863
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Bache, Alexander Dallas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Bacon, Asa This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1856

b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Bailey, Jacob Whitman This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Baldwin, Dwight This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845, 1849
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Bancroft, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Beck, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1859
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Berzelius, Jons Jakob This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Bossange, Edouard This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1853
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Blake, William Phipps This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852, 1863
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Brewster, Sir David This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Brewster, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1856
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Brockett, Linus Pierpont This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Brower, George C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 22, f. 74reel 13U	Brush, George Jarvis This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1854
b. 22, f. 75reel 13U	C - D This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846-1848, 1851-1854, 1857, 1859-1860

b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Campbell, Henry P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Chambers, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Chauncey, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846-1847
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Chauncey, Nathaniel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849, 1857
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Clayton, John Middleton This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Coggeshall, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1860
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Colton, Gardner Q. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Combe, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Cooke, Josiah Parsons This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Cooper, James Fenimore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dana, James Dwight This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dana, Richard Henry, Jr. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Daubeny, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1847-1849

b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Davis, Capt. [Charles Henry]? This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Day, Jeremiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843-1845, 1851
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Delavan, Edward C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Delesse, Achille This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dewey, Chester This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1863
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dickson, Samuel Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1859
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dix, Dorothea Lynde This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 1-10, folder 1-140</u>	1849, 1851, undated
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Draper, John William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Duncan, Greer B. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850
b. 22, f. 76reel 13U	Dunglison, Robiey This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849
b. 22, f. 77reel 13U	E - F This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845-1846, 1848, 1854
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Eliot, Charles William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1862
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Ellsworth, Henry William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847

b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Ely, William D. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Everett, Edward This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844, 1846, 1853
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Ewbank, Thomas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Field, Henry Martyn This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1856
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Fisher, George P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1863-1864
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Flint, Austin (1812-1886) This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Foote, Andrew Hull This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 22, f. 78reel 13U	Frémont, John Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1856
b. 22, f. 79reel 13U	G This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842, 1853, 1854, 1856, 1859-1860, 1864
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gardette, E. B. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1856, 1868
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gibbon, J. H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gibbs, Josiah Willard This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1860
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gilman, Daniel Coit This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1855

b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Genth, Frederick Augustus This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853-1854
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Goebeler, H. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Goodrich, Charles R. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853-1854
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gould, Benjamin Athorp This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	(1824-1896)
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Granger, Francis This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850
b. 22, f. 80reel 13U	Gray, Asa This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1863
b. 22, f. 81reel 13U	H This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844-1846, 1850-1851, 1853-1854, 1864-1865
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Hall, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	(1811-1898)
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Hare, Robert This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1845, 1850-1853
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Harrod, Georgiana P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845-1846, 1848
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Hayes, Augustus Allen This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1847, 1852-1853, 1855
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Hayes, Isaac Israel This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1858, 1860
b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Henry, Joseph This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851, 1864

b. 22, f. 82reel 13U	Herrick, Edward Claudius This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1842-1843, 1851-1852
	originals.	
b. 22, f. 82reel	Hildreth, Samuel Prescott	1842–1843, 1851–
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1855, n.d
b. 22, f. 82reel	Hughes, Christopher	1848
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 82reel	Hunt, Thomas Sterry	1850, 1852-1853,
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 22, f. 82reel	Huntington, Daniel	1861
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 82reel	Huntington, Jabez	1845
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 83reel	I - J - K	1842, 1849-1851,
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853-1855, 1859, 1861, 1863
b. 22, f. 84reel	Irving, Washington	1853, 1855-1856
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 84reel	Jackson, Charles Thomas	1845, 1849-1850,
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852
b. 22, f. 84reel	Jocelyn, Nathaniel	1844
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 84reel	Johnson, Walter Rogers	1847
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 84reel	Jones, George	1856
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 22, f. 84reel	Kingsley, James Luce	1843
13U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

b. 22, f. 84reel 13U	Krantz, August This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852
b. 22, f. 85reel 13U	L This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843-1846, 1853, 1861, 1864
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lea, Isaac This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845, 1860-1861
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Legaré, John Berwick and Mrs. Legaré This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845, 1857
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lenoir, George André This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lenox, James This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1855
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lester, Charles Edward This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Locke, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Longfellow, Henry Wadsworth This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lowell, John A. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1848
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lyell, Sir Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 22, f. 86reel 13U	Lynch, William Francis This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849
b. 22, f. 87reel 13U	M This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1844, 1848, 1851-1852, 1854, 1855, 1858-1860, 1864, 1865

b. 22, f. 88reel 13U	Mantell, Gideon Algernon. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. see also: Family Correspondence: General see also: General Correspondence: 1842-1864 see also: Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences and Manuscripts: Others	1842-1846
b. 22, f. 89reel 13U	Mantell, Gideon Algernon. ALS from Benjamin Douglas Silliman to Mantell, 1848 Nov 20 This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847-1852
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Mantell, Reginald N. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851, 1853
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Marsh, George Perkins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Maury, Matthew Fontaine This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844, 1852-1853
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Mellen, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1859
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Millington, John This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850
b. 22, f. 90reel 13U	Murchison, Sir Roderick Impey This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846
b. 23, f. 91reel 14U	N - O - P - Q This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842, 1845-1846, 1851-1852, 1854, 1856, 1860-1864
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Newberry, John Strong This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849, 1862
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Nicklès, François Joseph Jérome This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1863
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Nordenskiöld, Baron Nils Adolf Erik This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1876

b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Norton, John Pitkin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the	1852
	originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel	Noyes, Joseph F.	1849
14U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel	Orton, James	1854
14U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Owen, David Dale	1853
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel	Page, Charles Grafton	1850
14U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel	Parsons, Theophilus	1859
14U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Peirce, Benjamin	1843
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Pomeroy, John Norton	1853
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Porter, John Addison	1854
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Porter, Noah	1844
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Putnam, George Palmer	1843, 1854, 1856
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Putnam (G.P.) & Company	1852, 1854
140	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 92reel	Quetelet, Lambert-Adolphe-Jacques	1851
14U	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Quincy, Eliza Susan This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1862-1863
b. 23, f. 92reel 14U	Quincy, Josiah This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1859
b. 23, f. 93reel 14U	R This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1848, 1850, 1852, 1854-1857
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Ravenel, Henry William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1855
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Redfield, William C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Richardson, John P. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854, 1856
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Riocreux, A. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1858
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Robbins, Thomas This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Rogers, Henry Darwin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Rogers, William Barton This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Ruggles, Samuel Bulkley This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854, 1859, 1864
b. 23, f. 94reel 14U	Rushton, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1858
b. 23, f. 95reel 14U	S This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1846, 1847, 1850, 1852-1855, 1857, 1859, 1861

b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Safford, James Merrill This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Sargent, Winthrop J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Schoolcraft, Henry Rowe This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Schweizerbart, E. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Scoresby, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Sedgewick, Theodore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1854
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Seymour, Thomas Hart This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Shaffner, Taliaferro Preston This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Shepard, Charles Upham This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843, 1845, 1849-1851, 1855-1860
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Smith, Gerrit This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Smith, Hamilton This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852, 1854
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Smith, J. Bryant This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853-1854
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Smith, J. Lawrence This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1854

b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Sparks, Jared This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845, 1853
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Sprague, William Buell This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1848, 1855– 1856, 1860, 1862, [1864]?
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Squier, Ephraim George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854, 1860
b. 23, f. 96reel 14U	Sumner, George This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846, 1854
b. 23, f. 97reel 14U	T - U - V This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844, 1850-1851, 1853-1854, 1857, 1860, 1864
b. 23, f. 98Areel 14U	Taft, Alphonso This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 98Areel 14U	Taft, Kay and Dickson This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 98Areel 14U	Tappan, Benjamin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 23, f. 98Areel 14U	Taylor, John and Elizabeth This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842–1843, 1845, 1851–1853, 1854, 1855–59
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Tenney, William Jewett This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Tooley, Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845-1846
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Troost, Gerhard This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Tuckerman, Henry Theodore This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854

b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Tully, William This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Twining, Alexander Catlin This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845, 1849, 1856-1857
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	U.S. War Dept This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1861
b. 23, f. 98Breel 14U	Vattemare, Nicholas Marie Alexandre This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849-1850
b. 23, f. 99reel 14U	W - X - Y - Z This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847, 1851, 1853-1854, 1857-1859, 1862-1863
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Warren, John Collins This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	(1778-1856)
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wayland, Francis This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	(1796-1865)
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Webb, James Watson This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Weld, Mason C. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wetherill, Charles M. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853-1854
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wheatley, Charles M. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	White, Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843-1844, 1846, 1851
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Whitney, Josiah Dwight This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1854

b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Whittelsey, Samuel Goodrich This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wilkes, Charles This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846-1847
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Williams, Samuel Wells This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1844
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Williams, Stephen This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Woodhouse, A. J. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1853
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Woods, Leonard (1807-1878) This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1860
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Woolsey, Theodore Dwight This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846, 1848-1850, 1853-1854, 1862
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wurtz, Henry This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1852-1854
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wyman, Jeffries This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Wyman, Morrill This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1851
b. 23, f. 100reel 14U	Yale College This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1849-1850, 1854
b. 23, f. 101reel 14U	Record of Correspondence: a chronological account of letters written by Benjamin Silliman from 1851 Nov 8 to 1864 Nov 23 with some incoming letters pasted in. An entry usually indicates the subject matter of a letter and may include extracts from it. This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 23, f. 102reel 14U	Unidentified This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1847, 1850, 1851, 1853-1856, 1860-1863

<u>1865-1885</u>

b. 23, f. 103reel 14U	A - Z This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 14 originals	40 instead of the
b. 24, f. 104	Barnard, Frederick Augustus Porter	1881, 1883
b. 24, f. 104	Barnard, John Gross	1865
b. 24, f. 104	Bierstadt, Albert	1865
b. 24, f. 104	Blake, William Phipps	1881, 1883
b. 24, f. 104	Brewer, William Henry	1883
b. 24, f. 104	Clayton, J. E.	1866, 1873-1874, 1884
b. 24, f. 104	Collier, Peter	1883
b. 24, f. 104	Cooke, Josiah Parsons	1880-1881
b. 24, f. 105	Draper, Henry	1881
b. 24, f. 105	Draper, John William	1867
b. 24, f. 105	Ewing, Thomas	1881
b. 24, f. 105	Fittig, Rudolph	1870
b. 24, f. 105	Gurley, Ralph Rand	1880
b. 24, f. 105	Hawkes, W. Wright	1875
b. 24, f. 105	Hawley, Joseph Roswell	1883
b. 24, f. 105	Hayes, Augustus Allen	1880
b. 24, f. 105	Henry, Joseph	1874
b. 24, f. 105	Hewitt, Abram S.	1872
b. 24, f. 105	Hoar, Ebenezer Rockwood	1873
b. 24, f. 105	Homes, Henry Augustus	1880
b. 24, f. 105	Howgate, H. W.	1880
b. 24, f. 105	Hunt, Thomas Sterry	1881
b. 24, f. 105	McMurtrie, William	1882
b. 24, f. 105	Malone, William	1882
b. 24, f. 105	Merrill, George Perkins	1883
b. 24, f. 105	Moore, Gideon C.	1875, 1882

1865-1885 (continued)

b. 24, f. 106A-B	New Mexico mines: letters to Benjamin Silliman, Jr. relating to his work as a mining consultant A copy of this material is available in digital form from Manuscripts and Archives. Contact Manuscripts and Archives at <u>beinecke.library@yale.edu</u> to request access to the digital copy.	1870-1871, 1880-1883
b. 24, f. 107	Parker, Peter	1873, 1883
b. 24, f. 107	Parker, Harriet W. (Mrs. Peter)	1884
b. 24, f. 107	Patrick, Marsena Rudolph	1873
b. 24, f. 107	Pierrepont, Edwards	1875, 1879
b. 24, f. 107	Poore, Benjamin Perley	1883
b. 24, f. 107	Porter, Charles H.	1869
b. 24, f. 107	Putnam, Frederic Ward	1881
b. 24, f. 107	Reid, Whitelaw	1872-1873
b. 24, f. 107	Remsen, Ira	1882
b. 24, f. 107	Singleton, O. R.	1882
b. 24, f. 107	Shepard, Charles Upham	1882
b. 24, f. 107	Sherman, William Tecumseh	1865
	Smith, Azanah. See: <u>T.C. Trowbridge</u>	
b. 24, f. 107	Smith, J. Lawrence	1875
b. 24, f. 107	Sprague, William Buell	1867
b. 24, f. 107	Terry, Luther	1881
b. 24, f. 107	Thierry-Mieg Dr.	1869
b. 24, f. 107	Trowbridge, T.C.	1879
	Trumbull paintings: letters in response to a request made by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. for information concerning the location of any work by John Trumbull See: <u>Series 5</u>	1880-1883
b. 24, f. 108	Twining, Alexander Catlin	1882
b. 24, f. 108	Tyndall, John	1872-1873
b. 24, f. 108	Waite, H.R	1879
b. 24, f. 108	Wharton, Joseph	1875
b. 24, f. 108	Woolsey, Theodore Dwight	1865

1865-1885 (continued)

b. 24, f. 108	Wright, Arthur Williams	1875
b. 24, f. 108	Wurtz, Henry	1869, 1875, 1880
b. 24, f. 109	Unidentified	1865, 1870, 1872-1874
b 24 f 110	Nata ta "Duaf Cilling an" fuena III Cillalla vall	
b. 24, f. 110	Note to "Prof. Silliman" from H. C. Hallowell	undated
b. 24, f. 110	Undated	undated

Series III: Diaries, Journals, Reminiscences and Manuscripts, 1795-1888

5 linear feet (13 boxes)

The material in "Benjamin Silliman" is arranged chronologically by type. The material in "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." is arranged chronologically. The material in "Others" is arranged alphabetically by author.

Some material received as part of the 1979 Jul Addition of the Silliman Family Papers was integrated into the original collection and noted accordingly.

Researchers must use the microfilm version of Series III material, MICROFILM HM 140. Material from this series comprises reels 1-8.

<u>Benjamin Silliman</u>

	Diaries	
b. 25, f. 1reel 2U	4 volumes with record of correspondence for 1796-1797 This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 33, folder 42</u>	1795 July - 1796 May
b. 25, f. 2reel 2U	"Birth Days - 1829-1830-1831" English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1829-1831
b. 25, f. 3reel 2U	Concerning a series of lectures on geology given in Salem, Massachusetts. Includes notes for a lecture on rocks given in Boston in March This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1835
b. 25, f. 4reel 2U	Includes a plan of lectures given in Boston in March and April, 1835 This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>box 38, folder 10</u>	1836 March- April
b. 25, f. 5reel 2U	"Journal & Miscellaneous Notices connected with the Lowell Institute" English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1839-1841
b. 25, f. 6reel 2U	Personal Notices, Volumes I - II This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1840 February - 1841 March
b. 25, f. 7reel 2U	Personal Notices, Volumes III - IV. Volume IV includes section titled "Birth Days & autobiographical notices.1835-1836-1839-1840" This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1841 March - October
b. 25, f. 8reel 2U	Personal Notices, Volumes V - VI This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1841 October - 1842 May

Benjamin Silliman > Diaries (continued)

b. 25, f. 9reel 2U	Personal Notices, Volumes VII - VIII This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1842 May - 1843 June
b. 26, f. 10reel 2U	Personal Notices, Volume IX This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1843 July - 1845 January
b. 26, f. 11reel 3U	Personal Notices, Volumes X - XI This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1845 January- December
b. 26, f. 12reel 3U	Personal Notices, Volume XII This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1846 January - 1847 December
b. 26, f. 13reel 3U	Personal Notices, Volume XIII This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1848 January - 1850 February
b. 27, f. 14reel 3U	Personal Notices, Volume XIV This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1850 March - 1853 January
b. 27, f. 15reel 4U	Personal Notices, Volume XV This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1853 January - 1855 October
b. 28, f. 16reel 4U	Personal Notices, Volume XVI This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1855 October - 1860 March
b. 28, f. 17reel 5U	Personal Notices, Volume XVII This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1860 April - 1864 November
Jour	mals	
b. 29, f. 18reel 5U	Travels in England, Holland, and Scotland, Volume I This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805-1806
b. 29, f. 19reel 5U	Travels in England, Holland, and Scotland, Volume II This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805-1806
b. 29, f. 20reel 6U	Travels in England, Holland, and Scotland, Volume III This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805-1806
b. 30, f. 21reel 6U	Travels in England, Holland, and Scotland, Volume IV This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1805-1806

Benjamin Silliman > Journals (continued)

b. 30, f. 22reel 6U	Travels in England, Holland, and Scotland, Volume V	1805-1806
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 30, f. 23reel 6U	Notes on Dr. Thomas Hope's lectures in chemistry, Edinburgh, Volumes I-II	1805-1806
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 30, f. 24reel 7U	Notes on Dr. Thomas Hope's lectures in chemistry, Edinburgh, Volume III	1806
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 25reel 7U	Notes on Dr. George Pearson's lectures and from Fredrick Accum's laboratory, London, 1805. Also, lists of subscribers to <i>The American</i> <i>Journal of Science and Arts</i> 1818-1822; and student lists for various schools at Yale, 1815-1820	1805, 1815-1822
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 26reel 7U	"Minutes of Matters connected with my voyage to Europe" English	1805
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 27reel 7U	"An account of personal expenses incurred during a tour to England & other countries by B. Silliman on business for the President & Fellows of Yale College during the years 1805 & 1806" English	1805-1806
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 28reel 7U	Notes on a tour to Europe in the spring and summer, Volume I	1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 29reel 7U	Notes on a tour to Europe in the spring and summer, Volume II	1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 30reel 8U	Notes on a tour to Europe in the spring and summer, Volume III	1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 31, f. 31reel 8U	Notes on a tour to Europe in the spring and summer, Volume IV	1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
b. 32, f. 32reel 8U	Notes on a tour to Europe in the spring and summer, Volume V	1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	

Reminiscences

Benjamin Silliman > Reminiscences (continued)

b. 32, f. 33areel 8U	Family background and early life This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals. See also: <u>Oversize, box 53</u>	[1853, 1860], 1864, circa 1857
b. 32, f. 33breel 1U	"Origin and Progress of Chemistry, Mineralogy and Geology in Yale College with Personal Reminiscences" Volume I, 1792 - 1805 Mar English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 32, f. 34reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume II, 1805 Apr-Oct English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 32, f. 35reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume III, 1805 Oct-1806 May English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 32, f. 36reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume IV, 1806 May - ca. 1825 English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 32, f. 37reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume V, 1813-1835 English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 33, f. 38reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume VI, 1835-1836 English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 33, f. 39reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume VII, 1837-1842 English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
b. 33, f. 40reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	Volume VIII, 1843–1845
b. 33, f. 41reel 1U	"Origin and Progress" Volume IX, 1846-1862 English This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	1857-1862
	Reminiscences of John Trumbull and of the founding of the Trumbull Gallery at Yale, 1857. See: <u>Series 5</u>	

Benjamin Silliman (continued)

	Manuscripts	
b. 33, f. 42	"Common place book. English versification." At the end of this notebook there are diary entries for 1796 Oct 19-21 English	1796, undated
b. 33, f. 43	Two poems with following notation by Benjamin Silliman: "Both the enclosed poems were written under the pressure of sickness and consequent melancholy. The longer one was spoken at Commencement 1796"	1796
b. 33, f. 44	Poems the production of a Juvenile Age upon Several Subjects. Includes the poem, "Columbia," about which Benjamin Silliman notes: "This poem has Dr. Dwight's corrections in his own chirography It was copied and spoken when I took my masters degree in 1799"	1799
b. 33, f. 45	"History of England from the earliest times to the present. Vol. 1st including 32 reigns & 599 years" English	1800
b. 33, f. 46	Notes on James Woodhouse's chemistry lectures, Philadelphia	1802
b. 34A, f. 47	"Examination of a mineral water situated at Middletown Upper Houses. (Connecticut)" English	1810
b. 34A, f. 48A	Report on water of Stafford. Springs	1813; 1817
b. 34A, f. 48A	Record of the last wishes of Timothy Dwight in minutes of a conversation between him and his brother, Theodore Dwight. Topics include posthumous publication of his works, discipline at Yale College and Mrs. Dwight's future. 5 p., with 1 p. enclosure [Transferred from the Humphreys-Marvin-Olmsted Papers.]	1817
b. 34A, f. 48AA	Preface to "Chemical Text Book for the Use of the Classes in Yale College and of other Chemical Students with applications to the Arts; to medicine and to domestic economy"	1829
b. 34A, f. 48B	Notes on autograph collecting	1834
b. 34A, f. 49	"Sulphate of Barytes as a Paint" English	1837
	Appendix to the Third American from the Fifth English Edition of Bakewell's Geology: Suggestions Relative to the Philosophy of Geology as Deduced from the Facts and to the Consistency of Both the Facts and Theory of This Science with Sacred. History Sprinted]. See: <u>box 45B, folder 77</u>	1839
	Introductory to the First American Edition of Dr. Mantell's Wonders of Geology [printed] See: <u>box 45B, folder 77</u>	1839
b. 34A, f. 50	<i>Observations and Remarks made during a Tour in Europe in the Spring and Summer of 1851,</i> pages 1-400 English	1851

Benjamin Silliman > Manuscripts (continued)

b. 34A, f. 53 <i>Observations and Remarks</i> pages 1051-1250	D 1851
b. 34A, f. 51 Observations and Remarks pages 401 English	-800 1851
b. 34A, f. 54 "The Wild Pigeons," copy in an unknown har English	nd 1864
b. 34A, f. 55 Miscellaneous	1839, 1850, 185 1857–1858, 186 undated
Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	
b. 34A, f. 56A Resolutions made on his twentieth birthday	1836
b. 34A, f. 56B Poems	1843
b. 34A, f. 56C "On the Combustion of Wet Fuel in the Furn English	ace of Moses Thompson″ 1860
b. 34A, f. 56 "Report on the Water Supply for Hartford" English	1861
b. 34A, f. 56E "Bay State Coal Mine," [co-author] English	1863
b. 34A, f. 56 "Report on the Daney Mine in Nevada" English	1864
b. 34A, f. 56G Principles of Modern Chemistry. Part I: Cher	nical Philosophy 1866
b. 34B, f. 56H "Hydraulic Mining in California. A Comprehe Water and Mining Franchises of the Yuba Co Gold Mining and Water Company in Yuba ar California" English	onsolidated Blue Gravel
b. 34B, f. 56I "Report on the Physical and Chemical Condi to the City of Norwich, Ct., from Fair View R English	
b. 34B, f. 56J "On the Volumetric Determination of Sulpho Illuminating gas, with a Description of the A H. E. Sadler English	
b. 34B, f. 56K "Turquoise of New Mexico" English	1880
b. 34B, f. 56L "Martite of the Cerro de Mercado, or Iron M Mexico, and certain iron ores of Sinaloa" English	ountain, of Durango, 1882
b. 34B, f. 56M "A Fatal Case of Poisoning by Arseniate of S English	odium" 1883

Benjamin Silliman > Benjamin Silliman, Jr. (continued)

b. 34B, f. 56N	"Sketch of the Life and Scientifc Work of Dr. John Lawrence Smith" English	1884
Othe	ers	
b. 34B, f. 57	Joseph Barratt: "Hypothesis Respecting the Formation of the Diamond"	Circa 1836
b. 34B, f. 58	H. Bissell: "Notice of Harris Gold Mine"	1831
b. 34B, f. 59	Alexandre Brongniart: Essay on the production of porcelain	1816, 1818
b. 34B, f. 60	Maria Trumbull (Silliman), Church: Poems	1836, 1840, 1862-1865
b. 34B, f. 60A	Copy of <i>Private Hours</i> , [Mrs. Dana, with love, from the Author (Dorothea Lynde Dix)]	1866 November 10
	This item is from the 1979 addition.	
b. 34B, f. 61	Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson: Essay on the characteristics of a good husband and a Thanksgiving Day reminiscence	1773, 1800
b. 35, f. 62	Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson: Reminiscences, 1736-1813. Photostatic copy of original only. (Pre-1773)	1801-1813
b. 35 , f. 63	Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson: Reminiscences, 1736-1813. Photostatic copy of original only. (1773.1813)	1801-1813
b. 35, f. 64	Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson: Reminiscences, 1736-1813. Copy of original made by Benjamin Silliman in 1856	1801-1813
b. 35, f. 65	Dorothea Lynde Dix: Poems	undated
b. 36 , f. 66	Charles W. Eliot and Frank H. Storer: "On the Impurities of Commercial Zinc," with editorial notes by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	1860
b. 36, f. 67reel 1U	Joseph Fish: Funeral sermon and memoir for Rebecca (Fish) Douglas, with notes for other sermons	1738, 1746, 1766
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 78 instead of the originals.	
b. 36, f. 68reel 1U	Joseph Fish: Diary with miscellaneous entries	1839, 1841-1846, 1851
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 78 instead of the originals.	1851
b. 36, f. 69reel 1U	Capt. Anthony Glass: "Copy of a Journal of a Voyage into the interior of Louisiana on the waters of Red River between the first of July 1808 & May 1809." Accompanied by notes by Benjamin Silliman. For additional information concerning this journal, consult <i>A Catalogue of</i> <i>Manuscripts in the Collection of Western Americana in Yale University</i> <i>Library</i> This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 66 instead of	1808-1809
	the originals.	
b. 36, f. 70	Grosvenor Silliman Hubbard: "The effects of the Study of the Poets on Style"	1860

Benjamin Silliman > Others (continued)

b. 36, f. 70A	Delia S. Leach: Poem "To Mrs. Wright"	1885 March 19
	This item is from the 1979 addition.	
b. 36, f. 71reel 1U	John Maley: "Journal of his Trip up Red River for the Texas Iron." 2 vols.	[1812-1813?]
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 66 instead of the originals.	
b. 36 , f. 71	For additional information concerning this journal, consult A Catalogue of Manuscripts in the Collection of Western Americana in the Yale University Library	
b. 36, f. 72	Gideon Algernon Mantell: "To a Group of Organic Remains"	undated
b. 36, f. 73	John Noyes: "A Discourse at the Close of the Fiftieth Year of His Ministry"	1836
b. 36 , f. 7 4	Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers: "An Ode to Ponto"	undated
b. 36, f. 75	Edith Silliman: Diary, 1865. Bible study notebook, 1864-1865	1864-1865
b. 36, f. 76A	Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman: Journal of a trip to Wales	[1851 or 1858?]
b. 36, f. 76B	Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman: "Reminisences [sic] of Some of the Italian Exiles of 1835"	undated
b. 36, f. 76C	Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman: Manuscript fragments	undated
b. 36, f. 76	Poem, "To Prof. Silliman on his eighty-first birthday," by Daniel Wadsworth	
	This item is from the 1979 addition.	
b. 36 , f. 77A	Susan Forbes (Silliman) Writ Diaries, poems and an essay	1856, 1868-1869, 1882, 1888
b. 36, f. 77B	B. H. Wright and N. Parks: "Remarks on the causes that interfere with the operation of the Atlantic Cable"	1860
b. 36, f. 78	Henry Wurtz, "Sodium Amalgautation"	1866
b. 36, f. 79	Unidentified: Miscellaneous manuscripts, primarily of a scientific nature	1806, 1819, 1839, undated
b. 36, f. 80	Unidentified: Poems by various family members	undated

Series IV: Yale Lectures, Students' Notebooks, Public Lectures, Addresses, 1806-1874

4 linear feet (10 boxes)

The material in "Benjamin Silliman" is arranged chronologically by type. The material in "Benjamin Silliman, Jr." is arranged chronologically.

<u>Benjamin Silliman</u>

Yale Lectures

b. 37 , f. 1	On mineralogy, parts 1-5	1813
b. 37, f. 2	On mineralogy, parts 6-10	1813
b. 37, f. 3	On mineralogy, parts 11-14	1813
b. 37, f. 4	On mineralogy, parts 15-18	1813
b. 37, f. 5	On mineralogy, parts 19-22	1813
b. 37, f. 6	Introductory lecture delivered in the Laboratory of Yale College, October	1828
b. 37, f. 7	Introductory lecture given to the freshman class, October	1828
b. 37, f. 8	"Manners." Given to freshman class, October English	1828
b. 38, f. 9	"Physical Habits as Connected with Health and Morals." Given to freshman class, November English	1828
b. 38, f. 10	Notes on order of chemistry lectures, 2 vols. Vol. I also contains notes on apparatus and preparations for chemistry course in Boston, 1836 Mar-Apr and memoranda of transactions in relation to <i>The American</i> <i>Journal of Science and Arts</i>	1839-1840
b. 38, f. 11	On geology, 2 vols.	1842
b. 38, f. 12	On manners., Given to freshmen, Yale Laboratory. (Brief notes only)	
b. 38, f. 13	On geology	1849
b. 38, f. 14	On chemistry. Pages 1-24 titled "Order of the Course [chemistry] of 1838-1839" written in unknown hand	1841-1842
Stu	dents' Notebooks	
b. 39, f. 15	William Jay. On chemistry	1806-1807
b. 39 , f. 16	Mills Day. On chemistry	1807
b. 39, f. 17	Ralph Isaacs Ingersoll. On chemistry	1807-1808
b. 39, f. 18	Asahel Thomson. On chemistry	1809-1810
b. 39, f. 19-20	Unknown. On chemistry	1810–1811, [1811]?

Benjamin Silliman > Students' Notebooks (continued)

b. 39, f. 21	Elijah Baldwin. On chemistry	1811-1812
b. 39, f. 22	Frederick Augustus Norton. On chemistry	1813
b. 40, f. 23	Roger S. Skinner. On chemistry	1813
b. 40, f. 24	Elijah Whitney Carpenter. On chemistry	1813-1814
b. 40, f. 25	Josiah Blackman. On chemistry	1814-1815
b. 40, f. 26	Isaac Bird. On chemistry	1815
b. 40, f. 27	Augustus A.Adee. On chemistry	1819-1821
b. 40, f. 28	Unknown. On chemistry	1820-1821
b. 41, f. 29	Daniel Ufford. On chemistry	1821-1822
b. 41, f. 30	Alvan Talcott. On chemistry	1822
b. 41, f. 31	Jared Linsly. On chemistry	1825-1826
b. 41, f. 32	R. D. Smith. On mineralogy	1826
b. 41, f. 33	Elias Loomis. On chemistry	1828-1829
b. 41, f. 34	Charles Augustus Williams. On chemistry	Circa 1845
b. 41, f. 35	Henry Strong. On chemistry. 3 vols.	undated
Publ	lic Lectures	
b. 41, f. 36	On temperance. Delivered on numerous occasions	1829-1848
b. 41, f. 36 b. 41, f. 37	On temperance. Delivered on numerous occasions Chemistry series, Franklin Institute	1829-1848 1831
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
b. 41, f. 37	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute	1831
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute On meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn "Water," Hartford	1831 1834
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38 b. 41, f. 39	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute On meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn "Water," Hartford English	1831 1834 1834
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38 b. 41, f. 39 b. 41, f. 40	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute On meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn "Water," Hartford English Chemistry series, lectures I-VI, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston, Mar-Apr Chemistry series, lectures VII-XII, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston Also given to Mercantile Library Association (in nine lectures) at Clinton Hall, New York, Jan 1838	1831 1834 1834 1836 March-April
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38 b. 41, f. 39 b. 41, f. 40 b. 41, f. 41	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute On meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn "Water," Hartford English Chemistry series, lectures I-VI, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston, Mar-Apr Chemistry series, lectures VII-XII, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston Also given to Mercantile Library Association (in nine lectures) at Clinton Hall, New York, Jan 1838 See also: box 38, folder 10	1831 1834 1834 1836 March-April 1836
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38 b. 41, f. 39 b. 41, f. 40 b. 41, f. 41 b. 42, f. 42	Chemistry series, Franklin InstituteOn meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn"Water," Hartford EnglishChemistry series, lectures I-VI, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston, Mar-AprChemistry series, lectures VII-XII, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston Also given to Mercantile Library Association (in nine lectures) at Clinton Hall, New York, Jan 1838See also: box 38, folder 10Geology series, Clinton Hall, New York	1831 1834 1834 1836 March-April 1836 1836
b. 41, f. 37 b. 41, f. 38 b. 41, f. 39 b. 41, f. 40 b. 41, f. 41 b. 42, f. 42 b. 42, f. 43	Chemistry series, Franklin Institute On meteors, 2 vols., Brooklyn "Water," Hartford English Chemistry series, lectures I-VI, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston, Mar-Apr Chemistry series, lectures VII-XII, 2 vols., Odeon, Boston Also given to Mercantile Library Association (in nine lectures) at Clinton Hall, New York, Jan 1838 See also: box 38, folder 10 Geology series, Clinton Hall, New York On meteors, Vol. I, Lyceum, Hartford On meteors, Vol. II, Lyceum, Hartford Also given at Young Men's	1831 1834 1834 1836 1836 March-April 1836 1839

Benjamin Silliman > Public Lectures (continued)

b. 43, f. 47	Chemistry series, lectures IX-XII, 2 vols., Lowell Institute, Boston	1841
b. 43 , f. 48	Chemistry series, lectures I-III, 3 vols., Lowell Institute, Boston	1842
b. 43, f. 49	Chemistry series, lectures IV, VI-VII, 3 vols., Lowell Institute, Boston	1842
b. 43, f. 50	Chemistry series, lectures VII (cont'd)-IX, 2 vols., Lowell Institute, Boston	1842
b. 43, f. 51	Chemistry series, lectures IX (cont'd)-XII, 2 vols., Lowell Institute, Boston	1842
b. 44, f. 52	Chemistry series, book of experiments, Vol. I, Lowell Institute, Boston	1841-1842
b. 44, f. 53	Chemistry series, book of experiments, Vol. II, Lowell Institute, Boston	1841-1842
b. 44, f. 54	Chemistry series, lectures I-II, Lowell Institute, Boston	1843
b. 44, f. 55	Chemistry series, lectures III-IV, Lowell Institute, Boston	1843
b. 44, f. 56	Chemistry series, lecture V, Lowell Institute, Boston	1843
b. 44, f. 57	Chemistry series, lectures VI-VII, Lowell Institute, Boston	1843
b. 45A , f. 58	Chemistry series, lecture [VIII]?, Lowell Institute, Boston	1843
b. 45A, f. 59	"The Influence of Science and the Arts on the Moral, Intellectual and Physical Condition of Man Especially in Relation to Our Own Country,"	1846
	Young Men's Institute, New Haven English	
b. 45A , f. 5 9	English	1846
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups:	1846 1846
	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association	
b. 45A, f. 59	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore	1846
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore Citizens of New Haven	1846 1846
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore Citizens of New Haven Mechanics Society, New York	1846 1846 1853
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 60	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore Citizens of New Haven Mechanics Society, New York Geology series, lecture XII, Smithsonian Institution Scrapbook containing newspaper synopses of the Smithsonian Institution geology series, with notes added by [Gideon Algernon	1846 1846 1853 1852
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 60 b. 45A, f. 61	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore Citizens of New Haven Mechanics Society, New York Geology series, lecture XII, Smithsonian Institution Scrapbook containing newspaper synopses of the Smithsonian Institution geology series, with notes added by [Gideon Algernon Mantell]?	1846 1846 1853 1852 1852
b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 59 b. 45A, f. 60 b. 45A, f. 61 b. 45A, f. 62	English This lecture was also delivered to the following groups: Mercantile Library Association Introduction to a course of geology lectures, Baltimore Citizens of New Haven Mechanics Society, New York Geology series, lecture XII, Smithsonian Institution Scrapbook containing newspaper synopses of the Smithsonian Institution geology series, with notes added by [Gideon Algernon Mantell]? On geology, Utica. (Brief notes only) "On Physical Health and the Means of Promoting It," Hartford Female Seminary	1846 1846 1853 1852 1852 1855

Benjamin Silliman > Public Lectures (continued)

b. 45A , f. 66	On volcanic formations in Italy. Lecture, originally prepared to be, given in Buffalo, was cancelled	
, A	Addresses	
b. 45A , f. 67A	"A Discourse upon Natural History," read before the Brothers in Unity English	1795
b. 45A , f. 67B	"The Theories of Modern Philosophy in Religion, Government and Morals, Contrasted with the Practical System of New-England," Society of Cincinnati for the State of Connecticut, Hartford English	1802
b. 45A , f. 68	"A Dissertation on Natural Philosophy and Chemistry," Connecticut Academy of Arts and Science English	1803
b. 45A, f. 69	"A Sketch of the Life and Character of President Dwight," Yale College English	1817
b. 45A, f. 70	"Some of the Causes of National Anxiety," Center Church, New Haven English	1832
	"Address delivered before the Association of American Geologists and Naturalists at their meeting held in Boston, April 25-30." English See: <u>box 45B, folder 77</u>	1842
b. 45A, f. 71	"An Address Delivered before the Association of the Alumni of Yale College," New Haven English See also: <u>box 45B, folder 77</u>	1842
b. 45A, f. 72	"Remarks on the Late President Dwight: His Talents, Attainments, Associates, Labors and Services to His Fellow Men," Historical Society of Hartford English	1854
Benjan	nin Silliman, Jr.	
	/aledictory address to the Graduating Medical class. "The Study of Nature ts harmony with medical life and pursuits," Louisville University	1850
··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Address delivered before the Medical Graduates of 1854 in Louisville Jniversity	1854
S	Remarksupon the Philosophy and Operations of the American Automatic Steam Co.'s Low Pressure Self-Regulating Steam Heating Apparatus," Committee of the Board of Education of the City of New York English	1860
	Address. "The Antiquity of the Human Race," Brooklyn, Rochester and Buffalo	1861, 1862, 1862
	Address. "The Truly Practical. Man, Necessarily an Educated Man," Commencement, College of California	1867

Benjamin Silliman, Jr. (continued)

b. 45B, f. 74A	Lecture. "Introductory to the Course of Lectures to the Medical Class in Yale College"	1871
b. 45B, f. 74B	Address. "Deductive and Inductive Training," The Chemical Society of the Lehigh. University	1872
b. 45B , f. 75	Public Lecture. "American Contributions to Chemistry," delivered on the occasion of the celebration of the centennial of chemistry, Northumberland, Pennsylvania	1874
b. 45B, f. 76	Notes for scientifc lectures	n. d.
b. 45B , f. 77	Bound volume containing writings of Benjamin Silliman and memoirs of Benjamin Silliman, Benjamin Silliman, Jr. and Faith Wadsworth (Silliman) Hubbard	

Series V: John Trumbull and the Trumbull Gallery at Yale, 1839-1896

0.25 linear feet (1 box)

The material in this series is arranged chronologically.

b. 46 , f. 1	Draft of a resolution of the Prudential Committee of Yale College thanking John Trumbull for doing some paintings for the Trumbull Gallery	1839
b. 46, f. 2reel 1U	Reminiscences of Benjamin Silliman concerning John Trumbull and the founding of the Trumbull Gallery	1857
	This material has been microfilmed. Patrons must use HM 140 instead of the originals.	
	See also: Draft of a letter from Benjamin Silliman to Charles Edward Lester, 1846 Mar 17:	
	<u>box 22, folder 86</u>	
	Note: There is a typescript of this manuscript in the Yale Archives, call number:	
	Yjg 93	
	Т 7	
	+858 t	
b. 46, f. 3	Letters in response to a request made by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. for information concerning the location of any work by John Trumbull	1880-1883
b. 46 , f. 4	Correspondence and notes concerning the sale of some Trumbull works by Benjamin Silliman III	1896

Series VI: Special Files, 1756-1964

3 linear feet (7 boxes)

The material in this series is arranged alphabetically by type.

Some material received as part of the 1979 Jul Addition of the Silliman Family Papers was integrated into the original collection and noted accordingly.

	Biographical Sketches and Memoirs	
b. 47, f. 1	Joseph Fish; Maria Trumbull Dana, Charles Chapman	1863, undated; 1961
	Faith Wadsworth (Silliman) Hubbard.	
	See: box 45B, folder 77	
b. 47, f. 2	Augustus Ely Silliman	1884
b. 47, f. 3	"Thanksgiving, 1864," poem on the death of Benjamin Silliman by Julina N. Bail (MS and two printed copies) English	1864 November 30
b. 47, f. 3	Newspaper eulogy for "The Late Professor Silliman"	undated
b. 47, f. 3	Benjamin Silliman	(1779-1864).
	See: box 45B, folder 77	
b. 47, f. 3A	Benjamin Silliman (1779-1884)	1956, 1959, 1962
b. 47, f. 4	Benjamin Silliman	(1779-1864)
b. 47 , f. 5	"Biographical notice of Benjamin Silliman" [Jr] English	1885 February
b. 47, f. 5	Benjamin Silliman (1816-1885)	1865, 1876-1877,
	See: box 45B, folder 77	1885, 1911, 1955, 1960, 1964
b. 47, f. 6	Benjamin Douglas Silliman	undated
b. 47, f. 7	Gold Selleck Silliman	(1732-1790)
b. 47, f. 8	Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman	1850
b. 47, f. 9	Jonathan Trumbull	(1740–1809): record of his last hours
b. 47, f. 10	Faith (Trumbull) Wadsworth	1846
b. 47, f. 11	Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1890
b. 47, f. 11	Eleanor Root (Silliman) Rogers	1884
	<u>Financial Material</u>	
b. 47, f. 12-13	Account book: Benjamin Silliman	1798-1807

Financial Material (continued)

b. 47A, f. 15	Account book: Yale College Laboratory and <i>American Journal of Science and Arts</i>	1826-1841
b. 47A, f. 14	Account book: Benjamin Silliman	1848-1855
b. 48, f. 16	Account book: Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson	1786-1798
b. 48, f. 17	Account book: Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman	1828-1849
b. 48, f. 18	2 cash account books of Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	(1878, 1879)
b. 48, f. 18	Account book: Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1871, 1878, 1879
b. 48 , f. 19	Bills and receipts: Benjamin Silliman and Yale College Laboratory	1810-1818
b. 48, f. 20	Bills and receipts: Benjamin Silliman, Yale College Laboratory and <i>American</i> Journal of Science and Arts	1819-1839
b. 48, f. 21	Bills and receipts: Benjamin Silliman, Sr. and Jr., Yale College Laboratory and <i>American Journal of Science and Arts</i>	1840-1884, undated
b. 49, f. 22	2 receipts	(1884, 1885)
b. 49 , f. 22	Bills and receipts: Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1870-1890, undated
b. 49 , f. 23	Copy of terms for a series of lectures to be given by Benjamin Silliman at the Wirt Institute	1843
b. 49 , f. 2 4	Receipts for payments on premiums (blank) signed by Benjamin Silliman as president of the American Mutual Life Insurance Company	185_
b. 49, f. 25	Tax receipt for payment of taxes on estate of Gold Selleck Silliman	1800
Gene	ealogical Material	
b. 49, f. 26	Joseph Fish, John Noyes	1839, undated
b. 49, f. 27	Silliman Family (includes some corres.)	1896, undated, 1848, 1855, 1860, 1872, 1877, 1894, 1958, 1975
b. 49, f. 28	Sarah Isabella (McClellan) Webb Silliman: family tree	undated
b. 49, f. 29	Trumbull Family, Robinson Family	1883, undated
Lega	al Material	
b. 49 , f. 30	Agreement as attorney in fact for John Felix de Ville concerning the sale of a gold mine to Lewis M. Hills by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	1866
b. 49 , f. 31	Agreements between Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Douglas Silliman and William J. Forbes concerning a plot of land in New Haven	1839
b. 49 , f. 32	Declaration of trust between Benjamin Silliman, Jr. and William H. V. Cronise	1866
b. 49 , f. 33	Deed of land in Brooklyn from Benjamin Douglas Silliman to Benjamin Silliman	1837

Legal Material (continued)

b. 49, f. 34	Last will and testaments of Benjamin Silliman (copy in an unknown hand) and some additional papers relating to his property and to the property of Harnet (Trumbull) Silliman	1845, 1854, 1858, 1860, 1862
b. 49, f. 35	Lease agreement between Susan Dyckman and Robert Kelly and other miscellaneous papers	1887
b. 49 , f. 36	Letters patent for a method for improvement in purifying illuminating and other gases by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	1874
b. 49, f. 37	List of claims against the estate of Benjamin Silliman, Jr., last will and testament of Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	Circa 1884, 1836
b. 49, f. 38	Papers relating to the settlement of the estate of Gold Selleck Silliman	1794-1795
b. 49, f. 39	Protocol: Mr. A's proposal to Mr. Forsyth of Pittsbg by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	undated
b. 49 , f. 39 A	Copy of partnership agreement between W. G. and R. W. Forbes	1885 April 9
Men	norabilia	
b. 49 , f. 40	Account of the funeral of Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman	1878
b. 49, f. 41	Account of the illness and death of Edith Wright by Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1881
b. 49, f. 41a	Address given at the funeral of Mrs. Emily Silliman Blagden	1853
b. 49 , f. 42	Advertising circulars	1870-1890, n.d,
b. 49 , f. 43	Architect's sketch of Vassar Brothers Laboratory, Vassar College, by Benjamin Silliman III	Circa 1879
b. 49 , f. 4 4	Autograph book, Caroline Trumbull Gilman	1864
b. 49 , f. 45	Autograph book, Faith Wadsworth (Silliman) Hubbard	1826
b. 49 , f. 46	Autograph book, Henrietta Whitney Hubbard	1852
b. 49 , f. 47	Autograph book, Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman	1835
b. 50, f. 48	Autograph book, Susan Huldah (Forbes) Silliman	undated
b. 50, f. 49	Bible study book, Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1864
b. 50, f. 50	Book of leaves picked by Mabel (Silliman) Kelly in England	undated
b. 50, f. 51	Calling cards	undated
b. 50, f. 52	Catalog of the library of the estate of Mrs. S. H. Silliman	undated
b. 50, f. 53	Certificate indicating that Benjamin Silliman studied law with Simeon Baldwin and was of good moral character, signed by Baldwin	1800
b. 50, f. 54	Certificate of membership in the British & Foreign Aborigines Protection Society for Benjamin Silliman	1839
b. 50 , f. 55	Death notice of Rebecca (Fish) Douglass	1766 December 8

Memorabilia (continued)

b. 50, f. 55	Death notices	1766, 1885, 1887-1888
b. 50, f. 56	General orders for the 6th Army Corps, March 24, 26	1864
b. 50 , f. 57	[List of the distribution of items among the family upon a death?] English	undated
b. 50, f. 57	Housekeeping notes and miscellaneous lists by various family members	after 1870
b. 50 , f. 57A	Furniture inventories of 34 Hillhouse Ave. and Grove Hall	1884, undated
b. 50 , f. 58	Inventory of books, manuscripts and works of art owned by Benjamin Silliman as well as a brief history of the portraits made of him (Copy only). Copy of "B. Silliman" bookplate with explanatory letter	(ca. 1857), undated
b. 50 , f. 59	Invitations issued to various family members	undated
b. 50, f. 60	Material, including some correspondence, relating to Robert Kelly and the New York House of Refuge	1885-1888
b. 50, f. 61	Miscellaneous notes	Undated 1924
b. 50, f. 62	Miscellaneous travel notes including notes on the Paris Exhibition	1878
b. 50, f. 62A	Miscellaneous newspaper clippings collected by Benjamin Silliman and Benjamin Silliman Jr.	undated
b. 51, f. 63	Notebook of books loaned by Benjamin Silliman	1835-1858
b. 51 , f. 6 4	Pamphlets published by Connecticut and Massachusetts Indian Associations, Women's Indian Association of Connecticut, and Women's National Indian Association. Also, some miscellaneous correspondence	1885-1888
b. 51 , f. 65	Pamphlets relating to women's organizations	1885-1890
b. 51, f. 65 a	Catalogue of the College of New Jersey inscribed by Eli Whitney	1838-1839
b. 51 , f. 66	Programs	1860-1890
b. 51 , f. 67	Regimental orders for the 13th Regiment, signed by Increase Mosely	1780
b. 51 , f. 68	School notebooks, papers, and grades of various family members	post-1862
b. 51 , f. 69	Sketched bookmark	undated
b. 51 , f. 69	Sketches, engravings, and miscellaneous pictures	undated
b. 51 , f. 70	Summons signed by Ebenezer Silliman	1756
b. 51 , f. 71	Wedding notes for Arthur Williams and Susan Forbes (Silliman) Wright	1875
b. 51 , f. 72	Notices on Yale alumni meeting; form letters on class record printing	Undated, 1885 October 15, December 1
b. 51 , f. 72	Yale events	1850-1885

Scientific Material

Scientific Material (continued)

b. 51 , f. 73	Items relating to chemist Frederick Accum, including a portrait photograph and a brief biographical sketch	undated
b. 51 , f. 7 4	Lists of subscribers to The American Journal of Science and Arts	1829, undated
b. 51 , f. 75	McConnell, et al., Benjamin Silliman; Jr Educator and Oilman, New York; includes facsimile of B. Silliman, Jr., Oilman, New York; includes facsimile of B. Silliman, Jr., Report on the Rock Oil, or Petroleum, from Venango Co., Pennsylvania, originally published 1855	[1955]
b. 51 , f. 76	Miscellaneous notes by Benjamin Silliman	1816, 1840, undated
b. 51 , f. 77	Miscellaneous notes by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	undated
b. 51, f. 78	Proofs of woodcuts for Benjamin Silliman, Jr.'s physics textbook	1872
b. 51 , f. 79	Scrapbook of newspapers clippings on scientific subjects compiled by Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	[1850?]
Yale	College Material	
b. 51 , f. 80	Copies of various documents concerning the relationship of both Sillimans to Yale and the Scientific School	1798, 1802, 1842, [1855?], 1856, 1869, undated
b. 51, f. 81	Papers relating to the Gibbs Mineral Cabinet	1825, 1827, 1853,
b. 51 , f. 82	Notes by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. on the Bunsen phosometer	undated
b. 51 , f. 82	Notes by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. on an experiment	undated
b. 51 , f. 8 2	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures	1821, 1855, n.d
b. 51 , f. 82		
b. 51 , f. 82	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures	
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u>	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures	1821, 1855, n.d
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper	1821, 1855, n.d undated
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr.	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?]
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85 b. 52, f. 86	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr. Record of Portraits (typed copy)	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?] 1856
b. 51, f. 82 <u>Phot</u> b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85 b. 52, f. 86 b. 52, f. 87	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr. Record of Portraits (typed copy) Portrait by Nathaniel Rogers	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?] 1856 1818
b. 51, f. 82 Phot b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85 b. 52, f. 86 b. 52, f. 87 b. 52, f. 88	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr. Record of Portraits (typed copy) Portrait by Nathaniel Rogers Portrait by S.F.B. Morse	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?] 1856 1818 1825
b. 51, f. 82 Phot b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85 b. 52, f. 86 b. 52, f. 87 b. 52, f. 88 b. 52, f. 88 b. 52, f. 89	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr. Record of Portraits (typed copy) Portrait by Nathaniel Rogers Portrait by S.F.B. Morse Portrait by George W. Flagg	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?] 1856 1818 1825 1832
b. 51, f. 82 Phot b. 52, f. 83 b. 52, f. 84 b. 52, f. 85 b. 52, f. 86 b. 52, f. 87 b. 52, f. 88 b. 52, f. 89 b. 52, f. 90	Tickets to scientific lectures and a class register for geology lectures ographs and Prints James Fenimore Cooper Mary (Fish) Noyes Silliman Dickinson William Kelly B. Silliman, Sr. Record of Portraits (typed copy) Portrait by Nathaniel Rogers Portrait by S.F.B. Morse Portrait by S.F.B. Morse Portrait by George W. Flagg Engraving by Daggett & Hinman	1821, 1855, n.d undated undated [ca. 1900?] 1856 1818 1825 1832 1832

Photographs and Prints > B. Silliman, Sr. (continued)

b. 52 , f. 9 4	Engraving by Punderson	1845
b. 52, f. 95	Portrait by Fagnani	1853
b. 52 , f. 96	Engraving by H.B. Hall	1853
b. 52 , f. 97	Portrait by D. Huntington	1857
b. 52 , f. 98	Portraits with Woolsey and Day	1860
b. 52 , f. 99	Mezzotints by P.M. Whelpley	[ca. 1860]
b. 52 , f. 100	Stereograph	1861
b. 52, f. 101-102	Photographs	[ca. 1862]
b. 52, f. 103	Engravings by U.D. Tenney	[ca. 1860-1864], undated
b. 52 , f. 104	Associational	undated
	Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	
b. 52, f. 105	Engraving by Buttre	1858
b. 52, f. 106	Engraving by Punderson	[ca. 1860]
b. 52, f. 107	Photographs by Warren	[ca. 1863]
b. 52, f. 108	Photographs	1866
b. 52, f. 109-110	Photographs and print from photograph	[ca. 1875]
b. 52 , f. 111	Portrait by J.F. Weir	1910
b. 52, f. 112	Composite photo of Sheffield Scientific School founders B. Silliman, Jr., Norton, and Sheffield	undated
b. 52, f. 113	Benjamin Douglas Silliman	undated
b. 52, f. 114	Harriet (Trumbull) Silliman	undated
b. 52, f. 115	Silliman family portrait	[ca. 1861]
b. 52 , f. 116	<u>Silliman house</u>	[ca.1866]
b. 52 , f. 117	Unidentified	undated
Care	d File Index	
b. 52A	A card catalogue of the Silliman Family Papers, listing many of the chronologically arranged family letters that are not individually treated in the register, and. giving further information on other individual items.	

Series VII: Oversize Materials, 1777-1864

Cor	respondence	1777–1837
	Silliman, Benjamin	1802–1837
b. 53	Day, Jeremiah, [1810], 1810 Aug 8, [14], 18	
b. 53	Hare, Robert, 1826 Apr 4	
b. 53	[Hildreth, Samuel Prescott], 1836 Jan 8 English	
b. 53	Mantell, Gideon, 1833 Jul 18, 1837 Jul 13	
b. 53	Noyes, John, 1802 Aug	
b. 53	Smith, Edward Darrell, 1837 Mar 30	
	Silliman, Benjamin Douglas	undated
b. 53	Fish, J., n.d.	
	Silliman, Gold Selleck	1777–1778
b. 53	Fish, Joseph, 1777 Jul 3, 28, 1778 Jan 19	
	Silliman, Harriet Trumbull	1835
b. 53	Church, Mrs. John, 1835 Aug	
Ren	niniscences	1853-1864
b. 53	Family background and early life of Benjamin Silliman, [1853, 1860], 1864, ca. 1857	1853-1864

1979 July Addition, 1811-1889, undated

1.08 linear feet (3 boxes)

From the estate of Edwin Pugsley, Y 1908. Received from Louis Kuslan.

Some material received as part of the 1979 Jul Addition of the Silliman Family Papers was integrated into the original collection and noted accordingly.

The following items have been removed from the addition:

- a) 3 issues of Harper's Franklin Square Library, c. 1885 to SML Acquisitions
- b) 13 art prints to SML Acquisitions

Letters to Susan Forbes Silliman Wright

b. 53A, f. 1-3	1874-1878	1874-1878
b. 53A, f. 4-21	1882-1886, undated	1882-1886, undated
	Letters to Harriet Williams Wright	
b. 53B, f. 22-27	1863; 1869; 1882–1889	1863; 1869; 1882– 1889
b. 53B, f. 28	Genealogy of Harriet Williams Wright's family written by A. Hamilton Wright; two church reunion notices addressed to Harriet Williams Wright	1885 November 3;, 1881 February 1, December 3
b. 53B, f. 29	Letters to Mrs. Eleazer Thompson Fitch from her sister, Charotte Antoinette (Root) Forbes L'Aignoux	1845-1846
b. 53B, f. 30	Calling cards, wedding invitations, other invitations	undated
b. 53B, f. 31	Arthur Williams Wright (Yale 1859), student papers and programs	1856-1858
b. 53B, f. 32	Prescriptions and home remedies	undated
b. 53B, f. 33	Housekeeping notes	undated
b. 53B, f. 34	Knitting instructions	1811-1877, undated
b. 53B, f. 35	Knitting instruction books	undated
b. 53B, f. 36-37	Recipes	undated
b. 53C, f. 38-40	Recipe books	undated
b. 53C, f. 41	Miscellaneous notes, printed matter, and newspaper clippings	undated

1981 Addition, 1862-1865, 1977

4 Folders

This addition to the Silliman Family Papers contains nine fairly lengthy letters from Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) to Maggie Lindsley of Nashville, Tennessee, between 1862 and 1864. There is also one letter from Benjamin Douglas Silliman to Mrs. Richardson, Maggie Lindsley's grandmother, and a privately printed edition of Maggie Lindsley's journal for the years 1864-1865 which includes transcriptions of the letters from Benjamin Silliman. In these letters he discusses his views on secession, emancipation, and the progress of the Civil War, as well as sending news of his family and daily life.

b. 54 , f. 1-2	Benjamin Silliman. Letters to Maggie Lindsley	1862-1864
b. 54, f. 3	Benjamin Douglas Silliman. Letter to Mrs. Richardson	1862 April 27
b. 54, f. 4	"Maggie!": Maggie Lindsley's Journal 1864-1865 English	1977

1982 Addition, 1838-1861, undated

21 Folders

This small addition to the Silliman Family Papers consists of letters written to Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) by his brother Gold Selleck Silliman (1777-1868) and sister-in-law Hepsa (Ely) Silliman, and by a number of their children, as well as letters written by Gold S. Silliman to the wife and children of Benjamin Silliman. These letters, which are arranged by family member, discuss the health of family members, marriages, births, and deaths, family travel and other activities, and some family business matters. The letters from Hepsa Silliman reveal her interest in such matters as the aurora borealis and electricity.

These letters were donated to Yale University in 1982 by Thomas P. Blagden.

	Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864). Letters from:	
b. 54, f. 5	Blagden, Emily (Silliman), and Thomas Blagden	1840, 1854, undated
b. 54, f. 6-7	Jones, Mary A. (Silliman), and George Jones	1838-1859, undated
b. 54, f. 8	Silliman, Augustus E.	1840
b. 54, f. 9	Silliman, Benjamin Douglas	1849-1852, undated
b. 54, f. 10	Silliman, E.	1845
b. 54, f. 11	Silliman, Elizabeth	1852
b. 54, f. 12-17	Silliman, Gold Selleck	1838-1861
b. 54, f. 18	Silliman, Harriet	1849-1856
b. 54, f. 19	Silliman, Henry	1840
b. 54, f. 20	Silliman, Hepsa (Ely)	1848, 1851, 1857
b. 54, f. 21	Silliman, Laura	1857
b. 54, f. 21	Gold Selleck Silliman (1777-1868). Letters to:	
b. 54, f. 22	Hubbard, Faith W. (Silliman)	1856-1857
b. 54, f. 23	Silliman, Benjamin, Jr.	1839
b. 54, f. 24	Silliman, Harriet (Trumbull)	1843
b. 54, f. 25	Laura Silliman. Letters to family members	1852

1984 Additions, 1805-1945

31 Folders

Received from Elizabeth Thomson, Yale Medical Library, 1984 May 23

The Silliman Family Papers 1984 May Add has three sections. The first consists of correspondence of Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) given by Maria Trumbull Dana, granddaughter of Benjamin Silliman, to Silliman College in 1945. It is found is folders 1-15, The second section, folders 16-23, primarily contains material concerning Susan Forbes Silliman Wright (1841-1890), while the third, folders 24-28, consists largely of typescripts of letters written by Susan Huldah Forbes Silliman (1819-1878) and Susan Forbes Silliman Wright to Dorothea Lynde Dix (1802-1887).

Add 1984 Jun (folder 30) transferred from Kline Biology Tower, 1984 Jun 4

Add 1984 Nov (folder 31) received from Mrs. Donald L. Rasmussen, 1984 Nov 12

Add 1984 Dec (folder 29) received from Leonard G. Wilson, 1984 Dec 18

Add 1984 Dec (folders 32, 33) received as anonymous gift, 1984 Dec 19

b. 55, f. 1	Chester, Anson G.	1857
b. 55, f. 2-3	Church, Maria Trumbull Silliman	1835-1862
b. 55, f. 4	Day, Jeremiah	1805
b. 55, f. 5	Hare, Robert	1825-1827
b. 55, f. 6	Kingsley, James Luce	1819
b. 55, f. 7	Salisbury, Edward Elbridge	1851
b. 55, f. 8	Silliman, Edward and Gilman, Julia Silliman	1854
b. 55, f. 9	Silliman, Gold Selleck	1851
b. 55, f. 10	Silliman, Harriet Trumbull	1840
b. 55, f. 11	Spring, Gardiner	1854
b. 55, f. 12	Trumbull, John	1806
b. 55, f. 13	Williams, William	1862
b. 55 , f. 14	C. A. Browne to Edward Salisbury Dana enclosing typescripts of five Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) letters 1823-1843	1920
b. 55, f. 15	Maria Trumbull Dana to Christine Johnston Northrop	1945
	Susan Forbes Silliman Wright (1841-1890)	
b. 55, f. 16	Correspondence	1877-1889, undated
b. 55, f. 17	Estate of W. G. Forbes	1888-1889, undated

Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) to

Susan Forbes Silliman Wright (1841-1890) (continued)

b. 55, f. 18	Bass, Nathan	1849
b. 55, f. 19	Correspondence, unidentified	1889, undated
b. 55, f. 20	Silliman, Benjamin (1816-1885): will	1864
b. 55, f. 21	Silliman, Benjamin (1849-1901)	1884
b. 55, f. 22	Lists	1889, undated
b. 55, f. 23	Pictures	undated
	Typescripts	
b. 55, f. 24	Belknap, Alice Trumbull Silliman	1884
b. 55, f. 25	Dana, Henrietta Frances Silliman	1849
b. 55, f. 26	Dix, Dorothea Lynda	1866-1877
b. 55, f. 27	Silliman, Benjamin (1816-1885)	1884
b. 55, f. 28	Wright, Susan Forbes Silliman: diary	1884-1885
b. 55, f. 29	Lyell, Sir Charles: ALS to Benjamin Silliman	1846
b. 55, f. 30	Wollaston, Thomas Vernon: ALS to Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	1858
	Silliman, Benjamin, Jr.	
b. 55, f. 31	Linonian Society: Committee of Graduates: treasurer's report by BS, Jr., with list of subscriptions	1854
b. 55, f. 32	Douglas, David Bates: journal of a survey of the eastern entrance to Long Island Sound	1817 May - August
b. 55, f. 33	Silliman, Benjamin: 16 letters to David Bates Douglas, with drafts Of 2 letters from Douglas to Silliman	1818-1827

ACCESSION 1987-M-039: Additional Material, 1836-1878, undated

0.5 linear feet (1 box)

Received from Mrs. Donald L. Rassmussen, 1986 Dec 9.

	Silliman, Alice J.	
b. 56 , f. 3 4	Correspondence	1870-1874
	Silliman, Benjamin, Jr.	
b. 56, f. 35-36	Correspondence	1868-1870
b. 56, f. 37	Lecture notes	1836
b. 56, f. 38	Ledger	1864-1865
	Silliman, Susan F.	
b. 56, f. 39-45	Correspondence	1852-1878, undated
b. 56, f. 46	ALS to Robert G. [Rankin?] from Benjamin Silliman	1860 January 3
b. 56 , f. 47	ALS to "My Dear Cousin" from Sue	1856 November 22
b. 56, f. 48	Handbill entitled "Thermometers and Barometers" notes	1853 March undated

ACCESSION 1988-M-072: Additional Material, 1841, undated

2 Items

Received from: Mrs. Donald L. Rasmussen, 1988 May 16

b. 56, f. 49	ALS to Benjamin Silliman, Jr. from Asa Gray	1841 June 14
b. 56, f. 50	ALS to Benjamin Silliman, Jr. from J.D.W. [James Davenport Whelpley?]	n.y. October 17

ACCESSION 1988-M-083: Additional Material, 1857-1874

1 Item

Received from: John Stadler and Nomi Mahlab, 1988 May 16

b. 56, f. 51 Journal of Maria Trumbull (Silliman) Church

1857 November 14-1874 December 29

ACCESSION 1991-M-078: Additional Material, 1878 September 9

1 Item Received from: Northwestern University Library, 1991 Apr 11

b. 56, f. 52	Autograph presentation letter to Benjamin Silliman from John William Draper,	1878 September
	author of Scientific American	9

ACCESSION 1995-M-109: Additional Material, 1837

1 Item

Received from: Walter D. Wagoner, 1995 Jan 24

b. 56, f. 53 Letter of recommendation for Samuel St. John written by Benjamin Silliman 1837 Februar	b. 56, f. 53
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	--------------

ACCESSION 1995-M-211: Additional Material, 1841 February 1

1 Item Received from: Wayne Smith, 1995 Jun 26

b. 56, f. 54 ALS to Benjamin Silliman from S.M.H. (with typed transcription) 1841 February 1

ACCESSION 2001-M-023: Additional Material

	Silliman, Benjamin	
b. 56, f. 55	Letter to his daughter, Faith, n.d.	
	Trumbull, Jonathan, Jr., and wife Eunice	
b. 56, f. 56	Letters to their daughter, Faith, 1776 Jul 13, 1810 Mar 12	

ACCESSION 2006-M-067: Additional Material, 1817-1847

This accession consists of correspondence to Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864) from Barnet & Doolittle, a New York-based lithography firm. Most of the correspondence was mailed from Paris where Barnet and Doolittle received their training.

b. 1, f. 1-4 Correspondence

1817-1847

ACCESSION 2008-M-082: Additional Material, 1846-1876

b. 1, f. 1-6 Correspondence to Benjamin Silliman, Jr., and/or his wife

1846-1876

ACCESSION 2014-M-003: Additional Material, 1836-1886

0.75 linear feet (2 boxes)

b. 1, f. 1	Correspondence of Benjamin Silliman, Jr. Primarily letters to his daughter, Susan, and her husband, Arthur Williams Wright.	1876-1886, undated
b. 1, f. 2-5	Journals of Susan H. Silliman's European travel	1851 March 17- August 27
b. 1, f. 6	Ledger of Benjamin Silliman, Jr.	1864-1866
b. 2, f. 1	Notes taken by Benjamin Silliman, Jr. at his father's chemistry lectures	1836 November 4-19

Accession 2015-M-025: Additional Material, 1836-1889

0.5 linear feet (1 box)

This accession primarily consists of correspondence between Benjamin Silliman, Sr. (1779-1864) and his second wife Sarah Isabella (McClellan) Webb, as well as correspondence between other members of the extended Silliman family. It also includes a diary, dated 1884-1887, that includes the household accounts of Susan Forbes Silliam Wright, as well as an entry regarding the death of her father Benjamin Silliman, Jr. on January 14, 1885; a pocket account book, dated 1868-1871, with medicinal and cooking recipes; and an address book of personal names arranged by city.

b. 1, f. 1-6	Correspondence	1836-1889
b. 1, f. 7	Pocket account book	1868-1871
b. 1, f. 8	Diary	1884-1887
b. 1, f. 9	Address book	Undated

Accession 2016-M-0056: Additional Material, 1805

This accession comprises an autograph letter, signed, April 27, 1805, from Jeremiah Day (1773-1867) to Benjamin Silliman (1779-1864), who was traveling in Europe.

Gift of Richard Van Wagenen, 2016.

b. 1, f. 1 Letter from Jeremiah Day to Benjamin Silliman 1805 April 27

Accession 2020-M-0004: Additional Material, 1864

This accession comprises a photograph, dated 1864, of Benjamin Silliman's library. There is a manuscript description of the library's family history on the photograph's verso.

Gift of Daniel Carroll Joynes, 2019.

b. 1, f. 1 Photograph of Benjamin Silliman's library

1864

Accession 2024-M-0021: Additional material, 1855

0.21 linear feet (1 box)

This journal documents Sarah and Benjamin Silliman's travels in the Midwest.

Gift of Jean and Jock McClellan, 2024.

b.1 Journal

1855

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Preferred Titles

American Journal of Science

Subjects

Art Chemistry Diamond mines and mining -- South Africa Educators Families Geology Mines and mineral resources Science Science -- History Slaves -- Emancipation

Geographic Names

Connecticut -- Politics and government Connecticut -- Social conditions Great Britain South Africa -- Description and travel United States -- History -- Civil War, 1861-1865 United States -- History -- Colonial period, ca. 1600-1775 United States -- History -- Revolution, 1775-1783

Genres / Formats

Account books Diaries

Occupations

Chemists Geologists

Names

Abbott, Gorham D., 1807-1874 Agassiz, Louis, 1807-1873 Bache, Franklin, 1792-1864 Blake, William P. (William Phipps), 1826-1910 Brongniart, Alexandre, 1770-1847

Bruce, Archibald, 1777-1818 Brush, George Jarvis, 1831-1912 Carpenter, George W. (George Washington), 1802-1860 Chauncey, Charles, 1777-1849 Clayton, Joshua E. (Joshua Elliot) Collier, Peter, 1835-1896 Dana, Henrietta Frances Silliman, 1823-1907 Dana, James Dwight, 1813-1895 Dana, Richard Henry, Jr., 1815-1882 Darling, Noyes, 1782-1846 Darwin, Charles, 1809-1882 Day, Jeremiah, 1773-1867 Delafield, Joseph, 1790-1875 Dickinson, Mary Fish Noyes Silliman, 1736-1818 Dix, Dorothea Lynde, 1802-1887 Douglas, Benjamin, 1739-1775 Douglass, David Bates, 1790-1849 Dwight, Timothy, 1752-1817 Eaton, Amos, 1776-1842 Fish, Joseph, 1706-1781 Fish, Rebecca Peabody, 1703-1783 Gibbs, Josiah W. (Josiah Willard), 1790-1861 Glass, Anthony, approximately 1773-1819? Goodrich, Charles, 1778-1871 Gould, Benjamin Apthorp, 1824-1896 Grimké, Thomas Smith, 1786-1834 Henry, Joseph, 1797-1878 Herrick, Edward Claudius, 1811-1862 Hewitt, Abram S. (Abram Stevens), 1822-1903 Hildreth, Samuel P. (Samuel Prescott), 1783-1863 Hubbard, Faith Wadsworth, 1812-1887 Jackson, Charles T. (Charles Thomas), 1805-1880 Littell, Eliakim, 1797-1870 Locke, John, 1792-1856 Loomis, Elias, 1811-1889 Maley, John Mantell, Gideon Algernon, 1790-1852 Maury, Matthew Fontaine, 1806-1873 Meade, William, d. 1833 Morse, Samuel Finley Breese, 1791-1872 Morton, Samuel George, 1799-1851 Olmsted, Denison, 1791-1859 Pascalis Ouviere, Felix, 1762-1833 Pendleton, William S., 1795-1879 Porter, Noah, 1811-1892 Putnam, George Palmer, 1814-1872 Rogers, Henry D. (Henry Darwin), 1808-1866

Ruggles, Samuel B. (Samuel Bulkley), 1800-1881 Silliman, Benjamin, 1779-1864 Silliman, Benjamin, 1816-1885 Silliman, Gold Selleck, 1732-1790 Silliman, Harriet Trumbull, 1783-1850 Silliman, Susan Huldah Forbes, 1819-1878 Smith, J. Lawrence (John Lawrence), 1818-1883 Sparks, Jared, 1789-1866 Stebbins, Josiah, 1766-1829 Stokes, Anson Phelps, 1874-1958 Street, Augustus Russell, 1791-1866 Sullivan, John L. (John Langdon), 1777-1865 Taft, Alphonso, 1810-1891 Tallmadge, Frederick A. (Frederick Augustus), 1792-1869 Tappan, Benjamin, 1773-1857 Thomas, David, 1776-1859 Torrey, John, 1796-1873 Town, Ithiel, 1784-1844 Trumbull, John, 1756-1843 Trumbull, Jonathan, 1740-1809 Twining, Stephen, 1767-1832 Webster, John White, 1793-1850 White, Henry, 1803-1880 Whitney, J. D. (Josiah Dwight), 1819-1896 Williams, S. Wells (Samuel Wells), 1812-1884 Woolsey, Theodore Dwight, 1801-1889 Woolsey, Theodore Salisbury, 1852-1929 Wright, Arthur W. (Arthur Williams), 1836-1915

Families

Dana family Fish family Gilman family Silliman family Trumbull family

Corporate Bodies

Barnet & Doolittle Yale University. Art Gallery Yale University. Sheffield Scientific School Yale University -- Curricula Yale University -- Faculty Yale University -- Students